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Corporate Information 2 5] & ¥l

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ExecuTive DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAU Cheok Wa

Mr. ZENG Yunshu

Mr. LEE Chi Shing Caesar
Ms. YEUNG So Mui

Ms. CHENG Mei Ching

Ms. YEUNG So Lai

Mr. LEUNG Ming Ho Vincent

InpePENDENT NloN-ExecuTive DIRECTORS
Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Yu

Mr. LUl Man Wah

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. LEE Chi Shing Caesar

AUDITOR
Andes Glacier CPA Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
The Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
Room 2101-2109

Tower F Xihaimingchu Building

No. 1 Taoyuan Road

Nan Shan District

Shenzhen 518052 Guangdong Province

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2108, 21/F., China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

George Town

Grand Cayman

The Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26th Floor

Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

In Hong Kong:

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

In the PRC:

China Construction Bank
Hua Xia Bank

China CITIC Bank

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the Company, please contact
Corporate Communications Department

website: www.hlkg.net

e-mail: ir@hlkg.net
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Properties Portfolio Overview ¥4 S =E

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS
COMPLETED PROJECTS

Saleable
Site Area GFA (m?) Area
Project name Place (m?)  Residential Shop Office Hotel  Others" Total (m?)
Harbor City Shenzhen 19,822 61,252 14,959 - - 19,366 95,677 76,211
Hong Long Plaza Shenzhen 19832 72,035 64,397 - - 36,198 172630 136432
Hong Long High Technology Industrial Park ~ Shenzhen 119,326 - - - - 237939 237939 237939
Grace Garden Meizhou 5,570 30,804 1,468 - - 1,188 33,460 32,747
Hong Long Century Plaza Shenzhen N/A 7454 12,664 52,400 - 12,230 84,748 72518
171,545 93,488 52,400 - 306921 624,354 555847
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/TO BE DEVELOPED
Saleable
Site Area GFA (m?) Area
Project name Place (m3)  Residential Shop Office Hotel ~ Others" Total (m?)
Zirui Garden Shenzhen 43538 90,015 8,002 - - 36,732 134,749 98,017
Ningjiang Uptown® Xingning 225,735 448,288 14,178 - - 6578 469,044 462466
Shenyang Hong Long Century
Business Square” Shenyang 55,435 - - 121137 66,006 - 193143 193,143
Shengshi Yayuan Shenyang 98,061 156,748 39,225 - - 150 196123 195973
Chaohu Vacation Water Town Chaohu 122,636 102,777 10,500 - - 3,000 116,277 113277
797,828 71,905 127,137 66,006 46,460 1,109,336 1,062,876
PROPERTY LEASING BUSINESS
Project name Place
Hong Long Plaza®? Shenzhen
Note:
(1) Includes club house and car parking spaces
(2) Sale and purchase agreement has been entered into for its disposal after the reporting period

Sun Century Group Limited &5t =B ER A 8
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Commencement/
completion date

2002/02-2003/03
2005/Q1-2006/Q4
2005/02-2006/Q4
2007/04-2009/Q4
2008/Q2-2010/Q4

Commencement/
completion date

2008/Q1-2012/04
2007/03-2016/Q4

2010/Q2-2015/Q4
2010/Q2-2015/Q4
2005/02-2013/Q4

Interest
attributable
to the Group

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Interest
attributable
to the Group

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100% owned
by the Group
Leaseable area

(m?)

64,397
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Properties Portfolio Overview ¥ %48 &1 =

THER BEER(m) MHERE 31/ s

(m?) £z (G-t BIE Hfgo aif (m3) BRIER FifkER

19,822 61,252 14,959 - - 19,366 95,577 76,211 2002/Q2-2003/Q3 100%

19,832 72,035 64,397 - - 36,198 172,630 136,432 2005/Q1—2006/Q4 100%

119,326 - - - - 237,939 237,939 237,939 2005/Q2-2006/Q4 100%

5,570 30,804 1,468 - - 1,188 33,460 32,747 2007/Q4-2009/Q4 100%

TiEm 7,454 12,664 52,400 - 12,230 84,748 72,518 2008/Q2-2010/Q4 100%
171,545 93,488 52,400 - 306,921 624,354 555,847

AR BEEE(m?) THEER 51/ r58

(m3) iz [k BE Hfgo fif (m?) BIER Frics

43,538 90,015 8,002 - - 36,732 134,749 98,017 2008/Q1-2012/Q4 100%

225,735 448,288 14,178 - - 6,578 469,044 462,466 2007/Q3-2016/Q4 100%

55,435 - - 127137 66,006 - 193143 193,143 2010/Q2-2015/Q4 100%

98,061 156,748 39,225 - - 150 196,123 195,973 2010/Q2-2015/Q4 100%

122,636 102,777 10,500 - - 3000 116,277 113,277 2005/Q2-2013/Q4 100%
797,828 71,905 127,137 66,006 46,460 1,109,336 1,062,876
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100% #E#=
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(m2)

Eell 64,397
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Group Financial Summary & B B 5 =

RESULTS E 3
For the year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLLFE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Turnover e 324,494 819,375 362,369 119,628 411,677
Net (decrease)/increase BEMENRAE
in fair value of B ORD),/
investment properties pi )12 (752,000) 208,415 56,830 62,120 180,352
Impairment loss on inventories HEZRERR (260,506) = = = =
(Loss)/Profit from operations (1R T (1,257,948) (118,689) 172,541 122,290 486,196
Net change in fair value of derivative TSR T AR
financial instruments AR ENEEFE 14,267 15,977 (19,994) 58,533 (28,182)
Finance costs AR (156,023) (160,934) (87,843) (90,227) (55,091)
Gain on bargain purchase in respect BREB O
of business combination ZEBEWa - 123,979 = = =
Gain on derecognition of available- RIFERA N E
for-sale financial assets SREENR 33,306 = = = =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 81,873 200,801 = = =
Impairment loss on subsidiaries group NEBRBELEZHE
classified as held for sale EBZREER (8,861) = = = =
(Loss)/Profit before tax B AT (B18)
Pyl (1,293,386) 61,134 64,704 90,596 402,923
Income tax FTiSH: 175,259 (28,455) (33,497) (87,236) (152,421)
(Loss)/Profit after tax BEis (B18)a8F _ (1,118,127) 32,679 31,207 3,360 250,502
(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners NETE Z=PN
of the Company B (B18) 58 (1,118,121) 37,609 32,699 3,546 250,685
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS {ﬁ:% N ﬁ fﬁ&;h@ﬂi%ﬁ
At 31 December
R12A318
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETH
Non-current assets FnBBE 792,760 1,889,099 1,436,304 1,368,908 1,282,002
Current assets MEEE 2,608,808 2,811,982 3,120,386 2,455,402 2,250,053
Current liabilities mEBEE (2,199,367)  (1,523929)  (1,210,385)  (1,255,575) (822,079)
Non-current liabilities ELE=Ni (545,091)  (1,400,926)  (1,625,468) (908,932)  (1,070,250)
Non-controlling interests JEERR R - (995) (2,732) (13,082) (12,268)
Equity attributable to owners AARIEBA
of the Company GRS 657,110 1,775,231 1,718,105 1,646,721 1,627,458
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Chairman’s Statement E=E#{ &

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director”) of Sun Century Group
Limited (formerly known as Hong Long Holdings Limited) (the “Company”)
is pleased to announce the consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: nil). The Group will formulate
appropriate dividend policy in accordance with the development needs in
the future.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

As the Chinese government introduced a series of austerity measures
over monetary policy to contain speculation activities in the real estate
market, the year 2011 was by any means a difficult year for both the Group
and the real estate sector in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Under such circumstances, the real estate market in the PRC experienced
the severest and yet the most controversial regulatory policies in 2011. In
general, the focus of the macro regulatory policies has shifted from the
initial control over the real estate sector to affect related industries as well
as the overall economic structure at present.

In review of the real estate industry for the year 2011, property developers,
investors and residential buyers all held back by prudence. In 2011, the
real estate market seemed to have weathered the storm as the housing
prices remained stable amid the continued tightening control measures by
the Chinese government which resulted in a significant decline in turnover
volume.

At EEERAR(FIBBEZERERA
al((Axra)ER(EFHE(EEFEHMRA
AARRBIREMBRG (A [ ANEE])H
2011 F12A31 BILFEMREELE -

EESTEZREEBEHZE201MF12A31H
IFEEZ RS (20104 : ) - REBBR
JERRNERTEMH T A ENREEE °

(o] g8 M & 22

TR ALEERFEARLME([FE]) At
FEHEITE 2011 FHMERFN—F - BAF
BB — R BB S B R BRI 5 B
ETHOEETE - T - FEEME

ERR - BRL ZEAZRRCHEINE
WETEMSRHERLHSROBEBEREINARL

BB A -

TERERT /A M

2011 FEHETE  HER  KREERE
RHEEEGEEERE - K201 F > fEFEHE
FEFLRRTE  EEPEBFRFERRE
BEBIERSRR AR - FEMKARE -
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Chairman’s Statement FE#R %

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (ConT’D)

We anticipate that the policies on real estate industry will be further
rationalised in 2012, contributing to a steady development of the industry.
In the work meeting convened earlier in relation to the national housing
and the urban-rural development, recommendation was made to support
the reasonable housing demand from residents in the coming year and
ensure that the demand for loans from the first time buyers will be
entertained with high priority. We can see that the focus of the regulatory
policies in 2012 will be suppression of speculations, increase in supply
and channeling demand. Measures such as imposition of property tax
in 70 large and medium cities, extension of purchase limitation to cities
of county-level and lowering the deposit required for first-time property
buyers and interest rate will be introduced and implemented by municipal
governments. There will be segmentation in land supply. The supply of
land for medium-to-low commodity housing will be increased so that
the prices will fall while the high-end commodity housing will face with
reduced supply driving prices up. Increase in supply for medium-to-low
commodity housing will become a key area of work in the segment of
commodity housing this year. 2012 marks the turning point where market
participants will gradually establish a rational mentality. The real estate
industry may return to a stage of normal development.

To address the problems arising from difficulties in financing, delay in
completion of construction work, overstocking and pressures over loan
repayment in the current real estate industry in the PRC, the Group
concentrated on integrating its business in 2011. By the orderly disposal
of its capital-intensive projects, the Group pooled together its capital
resources on developing individual projects, so that construction work
could be completed on schedule, the problem of overstocking would
be alleviated and the pressure on funding would be relieved, preserving
strength for the Group to capture the opportunities ahead. As we expect
that the supply for high-end commodity housing will decrease and prices
will go up, the development of the Group's business in future will focus on
high-end commodity housing, as well as the development of real estate
market in both the Yangtze Delta region and the Pearl River Delta region.

Although the Chinese government is expected to remain active in
regulating the real estate industry, the urbanisation trend and the
traditional concept of purchasing property for getting settled will still
create stable demand for the real estate market. We believe that, through
effective cost planning and management, we will still be able to perform
well and provide return for our investors in the face of adversity.

Sun Century Group Limited &5t =B ER A 8
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Chairman’s Statement E=E#{ &

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to bear its social responsibility and contribute
to the weak and poor. The employees of the Group have actively
participated in various charity activities involving cultural education,
disaster relief, environmental protection, health and hygiene, as well as
public transportation of the municipal. The Group will continue to promote
our corporate culture of dedicating sincerity and love to the community
internally, and bear our related social responsibility.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

After more than a decade of stable development, the Group still relies on
the trust and support of the shareholders, business partners and all the
staff in facing the challenges ahead. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express the sincere thanks to all parties concerned.

CHAU Cheok Wa
Chairman

30 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover: Turnover comprises of sales proceeds of properties delivered
and property leasing income. The dramatic decrease in turnover for
the year 2011 is owing to less gross floor area (“GFA") sold when
compared with 2010. In 2011, we have delivered office units and shop
of approximately 8,160m? GFA and residential units of approximately
6,340m? GFA, while we have delivered office units and shop of
approximately 42,280m? GFA and residential units of approximately
44,190m? GFA in 2010. The selling price of office units and shop is much
higher than that of residential units also resulted in the decrease in
turnover.

Other net expenses: The increase in 2011 was mainly due to loss on
disposal of investment properties of approximately RMB22,000,000 and
no such expenses was recorded in 2010.

Other income: The increase in 2011 was mainly due to the reversal of over
provision of accruals of approximately RMB9,847,000 and no such income
was recorded in 2010.

Selling and distribution expenses: The decrease in 2011 was mainly due
to the shrink of advertising and promotion expenses after the Hong Long
Century Plaza has been delivered.

General and administrative expenses: The decrease in 2011 was mainly
due to the disposal of subsidiaries as a result of integration of business.

Other operating expenses: The increase in 2011 was mainly due to the
advisory for the Group re-organisation of approximately RMB9,500,000
and a compensation of approximately RMB44,800,000 for the cancellation
of a property sales agreement.

Net (decrease)/increase in fair value of investment properties: The
change in fair value was mainly due to the prevailing market conditions. In
addition, the Group entered a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of
Hong Long Plaza at consideration of RMB780 million after the reporting
period, resulting in a loss of RMB715 million, such loss has been
recognised as decrease in fair value of investment properties during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Sun Century Group Limited &5t =B ER A 8
Annual Report 2011 —&——F £

BEEFWNE TN

$ 5 1] J

EERE EXEDERINMENBEERE LD
EHEEWA - 2011 FREEBE2E THREHRN
At EMEEmBA(IEZEEE]) H2010F 48
LE#R A o FR20114F - AEBMRN T 48,160
EEEMBENETREMNREHRL6,3400 &
SEEBEMEESEMN - MR 2010 FAEEMRNNTT
#942,280 ' FEEMEMEN S TIE B LEH L
44190 P EEAE BT EEMN - BFIEEMN K
EHNEERSNEEEN - EEBTALR
9\ °

Hr B - R 2011 FEMTIBHRNEER
BB AR 22,000,0007T © MR 2010
FWAREFBUAE -

HAWg A : 72011 FHE 0T 2 h RN A ETER
B BEREENHARKQB47,0007T © MM
2010 F W AR ERAFULULA ©

HERDHEMA 1 R 2011 FRDEZHNBE
A 5 AR HE T A0 B 5 I AR $HOR B UM AT
o

—MRRTHER  R201 FRDETEARES
& OF i S B A B PTEL -

HM&ESER  R2011 FEMEIBHNALRE
% & 78 B R AR 75 <2 1+ 49 A R %6 9,500,000 7T
MEBUEMEBEEREMEENBEOARE
44,800,000 7T °

REMEAARBRD) EMFHE: 24
EZHETEHNEAMRAAE BEF - K
SERREHE FTEEBAUREA
R # 780,000,000 7T ) & %8 & E 15 - A It -
R201MF12A3THLEFEANERT ARE
715,000,000 T Z I EME R R ERD °



Management Discussion and Analysis & [& 513 &2 24T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CoNT’D)

Impairment loss on inventories: The impairment represented (i) the
difference between the recognised inventory costs in Chaohu Project and
its fair value valued by an independent valuer and (ii) write down to net
realisable value for underground car-parking spaces in Hong Long Century
Plaza. No such impairment loss was recognised in 2010.

Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments: In
September 2007, the Company issued Senior Note with warrants. The
change in fair value, as assessed by an independent valuer, has been
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. It is a
non-cash item.

Gain on bargain purchase in respect of business combination: It was
related to the gain on acquisition of a former subsidiary holding Dayawan
Jade Hill project in 2010.

Gain on derecognition of available-for-sale financial assets: An
available-for-sale financial asset has been derecognised in 2011 with a
gain. However, no such item in 2010.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: During 2011, the Group disposed
of various subsidiaries as a result of Group re-organisation. The gain in
2010 was related to the disposal of subsidiaries holding Huizhou Urban
Upstream Landscape Villa project and the right to acquire certain office
units in Tower A of Hong Long Century Plaza respectively.

Income tax: The tax credit was mainly due to the written back of deferred
taxation liabilities as a result of the disposal of investment properties and
the decrease in fair value of the remaining investment properties held by
the Group in 2011.

SEGMENT ANALYSIS
In 2011, property development income and property leasing income

accounted for approximately 88.92% (2010: 91.88%) and 11.08% (2010:
8.12%) respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &E & 513 & 24T

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

Bank and cash balances and pledged deposits as at 31 December 2011
amounted to approximately RMB50.13 million (31 December 2010:
RMB102.22 million) which including RMB4.42 million, US$0.04 million,
and HK$55.99 million.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately RMB1,312.96 million as
at 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010: RMB1,935.43 million), of which
RMB865.96 million was repayable within one year and the remaining
RMB447.00 million was repayable more than one year but not exceeding
two years. The Group’s borrowings carried interest at fixed or floating
interest rates. The Group's total borrowings divided by total assets as at 31
December 2011 was 38.60% (31 December 2010: 41.17%).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB2,608.81 million (31 December 2010: RMB2,811.98 million) and
current liabilities of approximately RMB2,199.37 million (31 December
2010: RMB1,523.93 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB1,222.60 million were secured by certain investment properties,
inventories, prepaid land cost and pledged deposits of the Group of
approximately RMB780.00 million, RMB654.32 million, RMB74.94 million
and RMBO0.86 million respectively.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group's monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Renminbi. All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated
in Renminbi. The Group did not engage in any derivative activities and
did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its balance sheet
exposure as at 31 December 2011.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

For the details of contingent liabilities, please refer to the note 38 to the
financial statements.

Sun Century Group Limited &5t =B ER A 8
Annual Report 2011 —ZE——F&E3{

WO 4 - TR A L R

M2011F12A31 8 BIT RS & H REE
GRHOEARMES0.135 87 (2010912 A 31
H: AR#K102.22B87T) ' BEARKE4L428
ST 0.04 AEBETLKG5.99A8ET -

MR2011F12A310  AEENEEBENA
AR ¥1,312968 & ;L(2010F12 4318 :
AR 1,03543F &) - HRER—FREER
MEEAARKCE5.96 BT  RBEARE
44700 BB TE—FREXMFAEE - X%
EEEATEESRFEERAE - AE@M 2011
F12A3THWEELERIAEEEA38.60%
(2010412 A31 8 : 41.17%) »

M2011F12A8310 - AEBMARBHEEHAR
#2608.81 BEBTL(20105612A31 8 : ARK
2,811.98B8L) MABABBEHARE2,199.37
BET(20105F12 A31H : AR 1,523.937
BIr) °

E2p g R L

MB2011F12 84318 ROTREMEEHA
R#1,22260 BB THAEESFIHNEARE
780.00 B &L - AR 65432HET * AR
7494 B BT R ARB0S6EEILNE TIREY
¥ FE - BT REARERFEREER o

EE 3 35 1) J o e A el 3 3

REENEBEE BEFRNRSZETEUARE
B AEEEER %BLA/\EM;.HE o 2011
F12A31 8 AKEIWRELEEMIITETA
SEE) R E S B T AR ASE LAY A
EaEXRHER -

A AR

FHRAREBZFE  ER2TUBHMERM T
38-°



Management Discussion and Analysis & [& 513 &2 24T

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are
directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a staff force of approximately 65
employees. Of this, most were stationed in the PRC. The remuneration
of employees was in line with the market trend and commensurable to
the level of pay in the industry. Remuneration of the Group’s employees
includes basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives (such as
Share Option Scheme). Total staff costs incurred for the year 2011 was
approximately RMB27.41 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year 2011 (2010: nil). A special dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share was
declared on 5 February 2010 and was recognised as distribution on 31
March 2010.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development of middle to high end
residential and commercial properties as well as leasing of commercial
properties in Guangdong, Liaoning and Anhui Provinces, the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has disposed of
two investment properties, namely Shenzhen Baorun Decorative Material
Mall and Shenzhen Gangrun Commercial Plaza. At 31 December 2011,
the Group's total leasable GFA has been decreased from approximately
75,000m? to 64,000m?.

Summary of development and status of existing projects are reported in
the following paragraphs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CoNT’D)
PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Shenzhen Zirui Garden: Zirui Garden is in the boarder land of Luohu
district and Buji of Longgang district of Shenzhen, on the hillside of the east
side of Qingping expressway and Fengyi mountain tunnel. Zirui Garden
consists of premier villas, residential units and retail shops with planned
GFA of approximately 135,000m?. The project is under construction with
pre-sale and delivery in phases scheduled for 2012 onwards.

Chaohu Vacation Water Town: Vacation Water Town is situated in
Zhongmiao Town of Chaohu in Anhui Province. Vacation Water Town
consists of lake-side villas and residential units with planned GFA of
approximately 116,000m?. The Group planned to commence pre-sale of
the residential project in phases on the fourth quarter of 2012 onwards.

Shenyang Project: Shenyang Project includes Shengshi Yayuan and
Shenyang Hong Long Century Business Square, situated in Shenyang
Tiexi Industrial New City of Shenyang Economic and Technological
Development Zone of Liaoning Province. Shengshi Yayuan consists
of high-end residence with planned GFA of approximately 196,000m?.
Shenyang Hong Long Century Business Square consists of office building
and five-star hotel with planned GFA of approximately 193,000m?. Both
of Shengshi Yayuan and Shenyang Hong Long Century Business Square
are under construction. After the reporting period, the Group proposed
to dispose of Shenyang Hong Long Century Business Square to an
independent third party with a consideration of RMB82 million. Details of
this disposal had been set out in the Company’s announcement dated 6
January 2012.

DISPOSAL OF PROJECTS/ASSETS

The Group disposed of certain projects and assets in 2011 and subsequent
to the reporting period. We considered these are good opportunities for us
to realise these investments at reasonable prices. In addition, we will no
longer be required to provide further resources for these investments, so
that the Group may relocate its resources to other investments which may
generate higher returns for the Group.

The Group disposed of the following projects/assets in 2011:
1) a wholly owned subsidiary which shall develop urban regeneration
projects at Guangchang North Street, Yuanling District and two

other sites in Shenzhen at a consideration of RMB20,800,000.

2) a wholly owned subsidiary which shall develop Yinghua project at a
consideration of RMB28,000,000.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (ConT’D)

DISPOSAL OF PROJECTS/ASSETS (ConT')

3)

10)

1)

12)

a 90% owned subsidiary which shall develop Dongguan Qiaotou
project at a consideration of RMB4,000,000.

a wholly owned subsidiary which is developing Zhangjiakou Xiang
Jiang City project at a consideration of HK$80,000,000.

a wholly owned subsidiary which is developing Meizhou Grace
Garden project at a consideration of RMB8,000,000.

a wholly owned subsidiary which shall develop Huaxing Plaza
project at a consideration of RMB6,000,000.

a wholly owned subsidiary which previously owned a project, Jade
Hill City, at a consideration of RMB19,000,000.

a wholly owned subsidiary which operating property management,
at a consideration of RMB720,000.

an investment property namely Shenzhen Baorun Decorative
Material Mall at a consideration of RMB30,000,000.

an investment property, shop unit 201 of Shenzhen Gangrun
Commercial Plaza at a consideration of RMB30,000,100.
the land to be developed for Bauhinia Garden project at a

consideration of RMB4,550,000.

an office unit approximately 800m? at Shenzhen at a consideration
of approximately RMB3,734,000.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group disposed of the following
project:

1)

a wholly owned subsidiary which is developing Xingning Ningjiang
Uptown project at a consideration of HK$294,840,000.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group has entered agreements
and proposed to dispose of the following projects/costs:

1)

a wholly owned subsidiary which is developing Shenyang
Hong Long Century Business Square at a consideration of
RMB82,000,000.

an investment property, namely Hong Long Plaza at a consideration
of RMB780,000,000.
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Biographical Details of Directors &% 2 [ F

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, aged 37, was born in the Macao Special
Administrative Region (“Macao"”) and is a Portuguese national. He joined
the Company in September 2011 as executive director and acted as the
Chairman of the Company on 8 November 2011. He received his education
in Macao and has since then engaged in the business of operating and
managing V.I.P. clubs, in which he has over ten years of experience,
at the entertainment V.I.P. clubs at hotels in Macao. Under Mr. Chau's
leadership, the number of entertainment V.I.P. clubs managed by Mr.
Chau has soared from one to ten in the last five years, eight of which are
at the five-star hotels in Macao including StarWorld Hotel Macau, Venetian
Macao Resort Hotel, Grand Lisboa Macau, Wynn Macau (three V.I.P.
clubs) and MGM Grand Macau; and one of which is at the entertainment
V.I.P. club of the world-renowned Walker Hill in Seoul, the capital of
the South Korea. Mr. Chau is currently an executive director and the
chairman of Sun International Resources Limited (formerly known as Sun
International Group Limited) (Stock Code: 08029) (“Sun International”), a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM Board”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chau is
also a Committee Member of China Overseas Friendship Association (F2
EFINGES).

Mr. Zeng Yunshu, aged 59, an executive director, a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Zeng is founder of Hong
Long Property Group Limited, the major operating subsidiary of the Group.
Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Zeng worked in the Xingning
City and Meizhou municipal governments from 1981 to 1990. Mr. Zeng
worked in Shenzhen Petrochemical Industry (Group) Co. Ltd. from 1991.
Mr. Zeng was awarded the title of “Outstanding Contributor” for the
development of Xingning's economy. Mr. Zeng has more than 19 years’
experience in the development and management of properties since
1993. Currently, he is also a standing committee member of the People's
Political Consultative Committee of Meizhou, Guangdong Province, and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Biographical Details of Directors &% 2 [ F

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (ConT’p)

Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar, aged 48, joined the Company in September
2010 as executive director. Mr. Lee obtained a Professional Diploma
in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in 1985 and a Bachelor of Arts in Business
Studies from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as the
City University of Hong Kong) in 1994. Mr. Lee had worked in the Inland
Revenue Department for over 15 years after his graduation. In 2000,
Mr. Lee joined Ernst and Young, an international accounting firm, as a
senior manager. Mr. Lee later obtained a Master degree in International
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in 2001. Mr. Lee was
an executive director of Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code:
00812), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from
1 November 2004 to 29 June 2005. Mr. Lee was also an executive director
of Info Communication Holdings Limited, a company (now renamed
as Sage International Group Limited) (Stock code: 08082) listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, from 23 November
2007 to 1 September 2010. Mr. Lee has been the executive director of
Sun International, Newtree Group Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) (Stock Code:01323) and TLT
Lottotainment Group Limited (a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange) (Stock Code: 08022) since 14 August 2006,
4 October 2011 and 28 October 2011 respectively. Mr. Lee is experienced
in corporate management and internal control. Mr. Lee is a fellow member
of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. In addition, Mr. Lee is a
member of the Society of Registered Financial Planners.

Ms. Yeung So Mui, aged 35, joined the Company in October 2010 as
executive director. Ms. Yeung is the founder and a director of Sparkle
Life Charity Fund Limited. Ms. Yeung is experienced in corporate
management.

Ms. Cheng Mei Ching, aged 30, joined the Company in September 2011
as executive director. Ms. Cheng holds a bachelors degree in commerce
(marketing and advertising) from Curtin University of Technology in Perth,
Western Australia. Ms. Cheng has over the past adopted a pragmatic
and proactive management approach; and delivered solid performance in
various areas, in particular corporate management and internal control. Ms.
Cheng works at a subsidiary of Sun International since her graduation and
is currently an executive director of Sun International. Ms. Yeung So Mui,
an executive Director, is the sister-in-law of Ms. Cheng.

Ms. Yeung So Lai, aged 34, joined the Company in September 2011 as
executive director. Ms. Yeung is presently a director of a number of private
companies engaged in the business of bird's net trading and investment
holding. Ms. Yeung is experienced in corporate management. Ms. Yeung
is currently an executive director of Sun International. Ms. Yeung So Mui,
an executive Director, is her sister.
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Biographical Details of Directors &% 2 [ F

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (ConT’p)

Mr. Leung Ming Ho Vincent, aged 36, joined the Company in September
2011 as executive director. Mr. Leung holds a bachelor of business
administration degree in marketing from the Hong Kong Baptist University.
Mr. Leung has extensive experience in marketing and management and
was the General Manager of Pro Vision Technology Ltd. Since 2011, he
was appointed as Assistant to General Manager of Sun International.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Li Jun, aged 50, joined the Company in January 2007 as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee, respectively. Dr. Li has extensive experience in enterprise
management and investment risk control. Dr. Li is currently a non-
executive director of Global Flex Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00471)
and an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Glass Company,
Limited (Stock Code: 00739) respectively, he resigned an executive
director of Superb Summit International Timber Company Limited (Stock
Code: 01228) on February 2009, all of the companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, aged 43, joined the Company in January 2007 as
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of audit committee,
a member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee.
Mr. Cheung is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong, a Master of Accounting
Degree from Curtin University of Technology, Perth, Australia and a
Master of Science (Investment Management) Degree in Finance from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is an independent
non-executive director of China Environmental Resources Group Limited
(formerly known as Benefun International Holdings Limited) (Stock Code:
01130), a Hong Kong Main Board listed company, since 4 July 2008.
Mr. Cheung currently works as the Corporate Development Director for
Profound Heavy Industrial Limited. Mr. Cheung served at Deloitte Touche
from 1991 to 1994, and he was the vice president and executive vice
president of Daiwa Securities and Japan Asia Securities from 1994 to 2002
and 2002 to 2005 respectively. Mr. Cheung also worked as the Corporate
Finance Director of Grant Thornton from 2005 to 2008. Mr. Cheung has
extensive experience in the accounting area and capital market.
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Biographical Details of Directors &% 2 [ F

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(ConT’D)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu, aged 41, joined the Company in September 2011
as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of nomination
committee and a member of audit committee. Mr. Cheung has over 20
years of working experience in international accounting firms and law firms
and listed companies in direct investment, accounting, legal, corporate
finance and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Cheung is a Chartered Financial
Analyst charterholder and a professional accountant in Hong Kong, and
is also qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong. He has a Master degree in
Applied Finance from the Macquarie University in Sydney and a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Cheung is currently an executive director of Pearl Oriental Innovation
Limited (Stock Code: 00632). Mr. Cheung was also an independent non-
executive director of Global Green Tech Group Limited (Stock Code:
00274) during the period from 25 September 2009 to 31 December 2010.
All of the companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lui Man Wah, aged 29, joined the Company in February 2012 as
an independent non-executive director, a member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. Mr. Lui graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts degree
in business studies in 2004. He then obtained a Master of Commerce
degree from the Macquarie University in 2005. He is currently the Vice
President of the Equities Department of SBI E2 Capital Financial Services
Limited. Prior to joining SBI E2 Capital Financial Services Limited, he
had previously served in various financial institutions for over five years.
He was Institutional Sales Manager of the Securities Department of
Cinda International Limited from December 2009 to October 2010. From
December 2008 to June 2009, he was the Vice President of Polaris (HK)
Securities Limited.

WL IEBATE S ()

REIMEE 4158 R201MFIAMAERR
Al RENERITES REZEBE Efr‘&ﬁ
REEERE - REAERBRTRABERES
FEREHARETAR  FEERE - g5
FE - DERERNEAMHETIEL20F UL
K5 o RAEERBAUBEOTMEREEAR
EREXEE  TABBEERERM - RiE
B BEERIEAL (Macquarie University)
ERAEMELEUREAETIREGTAXE
B RN RELXBAMARSTPKEEERA
A (BE A R8T - 00632) Z#ITE S ° SR&ELE T
®E2009F9 A25HE 2010412 531 B HARIME
SEZAREEEAR AR (RHOHR : 0274)
ZBNIEMITEE - L ARHER T ER
£

BXERLE 295 N2012F2 AMAARR
A RBNMIERTESF BREBEENE  H
MZBEekE REZEgKE  mkE2004
FEEREFBEIAE HBEREENELE
i o EEBM 2006 FRSERBASEEEL
B HETHESESHREER AR E
HRIRE - RMARESESRREERA A
ZA BERSEERMEERR  KESER
F o FA20094F 12 AZE 20104108 © % ACinda
International Limited E 52l HELIE - B
20084 12 AZ 200946 A * HAEEXRES(F
B)BRATBLLRGE -

Sun Century Group Limited &gt 42 =@ E R A &

Annual Report 2011 =& ——F £33}

19



20

Directors’ Report EE 24

The Board is pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
real estate property developer in the PRC. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are set out in note 41 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

In order to provide the Company with a fresh and new corporate image
and identity, on 1 February 2012, the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting approved the change of the Company’s
name to “Sun Century Group Limited” and the adoption of " K5t 42 £ &
BMR/AE]" as the Chinese name of the Company for identification purpose
only. The new name and new Chinese name of the Company are effective
commencing from 1 February 2012.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 44 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: nil).

On the Group’s 10th anniversary and the 3rd anniversary of its listing, a
special dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share was declared on 5 February
2010 as a token of thanks to the continuous support and trust given by the
shareholders. Relevant cash and scrip dividends in lieu of cash at HK$1.29
per share were distributed to the shareholders on 31 March 2010. The
Group will formulate appropriate dividend policy in accordance with the
development needs in the future.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE OPEN OFFER

The Company raised its fund by way of an open offer to issue 615,335,692
offer shares at a price of HK$0.1 on 3 January 2012. Net proceeds from the
issuance of offer shares amounted to approximately HK$61 million (after
deducting the commissions and costs and expenses in relation to the open
offer). Such net proceeds have been used in the following manner:

—REEREE

General corporate and
working capital purpose

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE ISSUANCE OF
CONVERTIBLE NOTE

The Company entered into an agreement to issue a convertible note
with principal amount of HK$30,000,000 and initial conversion price
of HK$0.1228 on 20 January 2012. Net proceeds from the issuance
of convertible note amounted to approximately HK$29 million (after
deducting the costs and expenses in relation to the issuance of convertible
note). Such net proceeds have been used in the following manner:

General corporate and —MREFEREE
working capital purpose EeRE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

o3 BB B B Sk JE Y il i

201261 A38 - ARARERBAREEHHMU
0.1 8 03%97615,335,692 JREHER(H AE
EES WABITEHERNEBSMESREFE
#761,000,000% 7T (B AFREEEB 2 AE &
KAL) - ZEHREFHEEEATAAE
A

Amount used
as at the date
of this report

Amount raised  RAIREBHH
£58e CHRAZSE

(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
BEBT BEBT

61 61

AT T IR T R 2 F i

MN2012%F 18208 A QX @ % 1TA S %
30,000,000 & ) AT IR SRIBET S Wik - W1
HBEATNIR0.12288 T - TR EEN
P83 S EE4) 529,000,000/8 7T (1K 21T A]
BRZHEAAB 2 AE RRARERE) - ZATEX
BFECEN T AABA

Amount used
as at the date
of this report

Amount raised RAIREBHH
E5Ee CEFEAZSE

(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
"BEBT BEAT

29 29

JBeA

ARRFREETRAZHF BN HHRE
MEE33 °
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 35 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium, capital reserve and retained profits/accumulated losses.
The Company's reserves available for distribution to the shareholders
at 31 December 2011 were approximately RMB670,769,000 (2010:
RMB693,616,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB1,403,000 (2010: RMB1,253,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers taken
together accounted for 19.01% and 42.87% of the aggregate of the
Group's total turnover for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
taken together accounted for 23.81% and 45.81% of the Group's total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of the said top
five customers and suppliers of the Group for the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

ExecuTive DIRECTORS:
Mr. CHAU Cheok Wa (appointed on 2 September 2011) (Chairman)

Mr. ZENG Yunshu
Mr. ZENG Sheng (resigned on 14 January 2011)
Mr. JIN Leo
(appointed on 29 July 2011 and resigned on 5 December 2011)
Ms. YE Qingdong (resigned on 30 November 2011)
Mr. OUYANG Junxin (resigned on 31 July 2011)
Mr. LEE Chi Shing Caesar
Mr. CHAN Ting Lai (resigned on 2 September 2011)
Ms. YEUNG So Mui
Ms. HUANG Ling
(appointed on 5 January 2011 and resigned on 5 December 2011)
Ms. CHAU Sui Heng
(appointed on 2 September 2011 and resigned on 31 December 2011)
Ms. CHAN Wai Leng
(appointed on 2 September 2011 and resigned on 31 December 2011)
Ms. CHENG Mei Ching (appointed on 2 September 2011)
Ms. YEUNG So Lai (appointed on 2 September 2011)
Mr. LEUNG Ming Ho Vincent (appointed on 2 September 2011)

Non-ExecuTive DIRECTORS:
Mr. ZHANG Yijun

(re-designated on 31 January 2011 and resigned on 3 November 2011)
Mr. ZHANG Yiyan

(re-designated on 30 June 2011 and resigned on 24 November 2011)

INDEPENDENT NoON-EXEcuTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. LI Jun

Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam

Mr. WANG Fosong (resigned on 5 September 2011)

Mr. LI Wai Keung (retired on 27 May 2011)

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Yu (appointed on 5 September 2011)
Mr. LUl Man Wah (appointed on 20 February 2012)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on page 16 to
page 19 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND ROTATION

The appointment of each Directors is subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association. All of the executive Directors do not
entered any service contract with the Company. Each of the independent
non-executive directors (Dr. Li Jun, Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, Mr. Cheung
Kwok Yu and Mr. Lui Man Wah), who has been appointed to hold office
until the end of the forthcoming general meeting, will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting save as Dr. Li
Jun, Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam and Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu. Dr. Li Jun, Mr.
Cheung Ngai Lam and Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu shall retire as an independent
non-executive director at the end of the forthcoming annual general
meeting and shall not offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, Ms. Cheng Mei Ching, Ms. Yeung So Lai and Mr.
Leung Ming Ho Vincent (who were appointed during the year), Mr. Zeng
Yunshu and Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar shall retire from the Board by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible,
shall offer themselves for re-election save as Mr. Zeng Yunshu. Mr. Zeng
Yunshu will retire as executive director at the end of the forthcoming
annual general meeting and will not offer himself for re-election at the forth
coming annual general meeting.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or has
proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note 13
to financial statements.
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors of their independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and both the Board and the nomination
committee considered that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) (the “Associated Corporations”) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Long PosiTion IN THE SHARES OF THE ComMPANY

M L I BAT I AR R

ZIS/A—TEHﬁZ@JxﬁﬁiéEiﬂﬁ§$ﬁEﬁ%ﬁi%’ﬂ?{
B PR EHARR ([ EWRRD FE 313
?"Hﬁﬁ’]if%iﬁ’]iﬁﬁéma CMEEERE
2EEENRRAABYIFRTEETHRAET
Mo

By ~ MR B R 2
HE 25

2011F 128318 - EERAR RS EEE
B A @ (IR H R EEOIE XV 362 %) ([48
w/j&.DZHX - RN REFTEARE
BHE RS ENIEILHEATE 2 B ATtk
ﬂﬁﬁtm?‘ﬁ/\é%ﬁh BHER 5 ZIREST
A([EEFR D M BITAE AR R
RO

RAERARRMDZFR
Percentage
of aggregate
Number of interests to
underlying total number
shares of shares
Number of shares held under in issue*
BRHEE equity %
derivatives R
Personal Family Corporate BRALTE HEBRTRG
interests interests interests T EI3E1E Total BFZEALL*
Name of Director £t BAER RikiER ARER RAZHE @t %
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa [AlEEE L £ - - 307,668,000 - 307,668,000 25.00%
Ms. Yeung So Mui BEELT - 307,668,000° - - 307,668,000 25.00%
Mr. Zeng Yunshu BERRAE 3,733,023 - - - 3,733,023 0.30%
Dr. LiJun F Bt - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.08%
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RRMEE - - - 1,000,000* 1,000,000 0.08%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Cont’D)

Notes:
1. This represents interests held by the relevant Director as beneficial owner.

2. This represents interests held by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa through Fame Select
Limited (“Fame Select”), which holds 307,668,000 shares of the Company.
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa has 50% interest in Fame Select, he is therefore deemed

to be interested in 307,668,000 shares of the Company.

3. This represents interests held by Mr. Cheng Ting Kong through Fame Select,
which holds 307,668,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng Ting Kong has
50% interest in Fame Select. Ms. Yeung So Mui is the spouse of Mr. Cheng
Ting Kong and she is therefore deemed to be interested in 307,668,000

shares of the Company.

4. This represents interests in options held by the relevant Director as a
beneficial owner to subscribe for the relevant underlying shares granted by
the Company under the Shares Option Scheme, details of which are set out

in the section headed " Share Option”.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2011 (i.e. 1,230,671,384 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors
had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its Associated Corporations which
had been entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
this report and in note 40 to the financial statements, no other contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the number of outstanding option shares
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme to the Directors
to subscribe for shares of the Company, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code is
set out in the section headed “Share Option” of this report below.

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the year was the Company
or its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of those persons (other than
the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were
as follows:

T SR P AR A

REERBERFHRAML  BEEEHEEX
R EAEREEBREF R EERHES
MV ERET B S am (ER R ETARAD -

o A B A 27 RO RE R

MR2011F12A31H  EBREHFRBEGGSE
3521 B1F B 2 & M AT sk sk IR IBIZ <P A 5
ARAARNBRERAANE - RARREERQ
FIEE IR MRIE R RREF B Tl REAR
AR 2 M ARITERRIEEE R ARE T X
[FRARHE | —8f -

B SN - AR T S EE A A mT Y
EREH BEEFTEBREALARGK
FE{AT £ 2 PR T 2

AR T A Z T EE R 2

R2011F 12 A31H  RARRRG EERE
BELHEIEHIEIB6IEANFBFE 2 E LM
Fretsk 2 S 2 ZEAT (BESHBIMN T ¢

Number of Percentage
underlying of shares to
shares held total number of
under equity shares in issue*
derivatives %
Capacity in which Number of BRARSTE BRMEE BTR A
Name shares were held shares TEEEHEE B HDL*
g REEERG 2515 RiDEE B2 EE %
Fame Select' Beneficial owner 307,668,000 (L) - 25.00%
EREAA
Green Auspice Limited? Beneficial owner 144,357,754(L) - 11.73%
HRBRAR ERMmAA
CCB International (Holdings) Beneficial owner 80,000,000(L) - 6.50%
Limited (“CCBIL") 2 EREAA 80,000,000(S) 6.50%
L: Long position &
S: Short position %2
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY (Cont’p)

Notes:

1. Fame Select owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa and 50% by Mr. Cheng
Ting Kong. As such, Mr. Chau Cheok Wa and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong were
deemed to be interested in 307,668,000 shares of the Company held by Fame

Select.

2. Green Auspice Limited was wholly owned by Ms. So Sok Ngo. As such,
Ms. So Sok Ngo was deemed to be interested in 144,357,754 shares of the
Company held by Green Auspice Limited

3. This represents interests held by Central Huijin Investment Limited (”Central
Huijin”) through CCBIL. Central Huijin has 57.09% indirectly interest in CCBIL.
Central Huijin therefore deemed to be interested in 80,000,000 shares (long
position) and 80,000,000 shares (short position) of the Company, respectively.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2011 (i.e. 1,230,671,384 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which had been recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency of public float
of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing Rules up to the
date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands.
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SHARE OPTION

On 31 January 2007, in recognition of the contributions made by
employees of the Group towards its growth and success, a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") was adopted by the shareholder’s
written resolution of the Company.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing of, and
permission to deal in the shares of the Company which may fall to be
issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which granted and/or may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme, subsequently.

As at 31 December 2011, a total of 36,935,000 share options were granted
under the Share Option Scheme outstanding.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(A)  SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Purpose

Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees had
made or may make to the Group.

Participants

Eligible participants include:

(a) any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company (" Affiliate”);

(b)  the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or

(c) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.
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SHARE OPTION (ConNT’D)

(A)

SHARE OpTION ScHEME (CONT'D)

Exercise price

Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the nominal value of the share;

(b) the closing price of (1) one share on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c) the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date.

Total number of shares available for issue and the percentage

of the issued shares capital that it represents as at the date of

this annual report

123,067,138 shares, being approximately 5.89% of the issued
shares of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.
Period within which the securities must be taken up under the
option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of which,

from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on which such
option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can

be exercised

Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance

HK$10.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.
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SHARE OPTION (ConT’D) o S (%)
(A)  SHare OpTiON ScHEME (CONT'D) (A) RRIREE(E)
Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid 113288 B AL N8B ZHIR
Not applicable. TEA -
Remaining life of the scheme Zat &2 R T F 5
The scheme will be valid and effective until 31 January 2017, ZAr eI AR RBREZ2017F1 A31
after which no further options will be granted but the provisions B HEBFTSREEMARBRE  B%
of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other FrElZ XA BEM B ER T2
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing MAORBH e Rz E AR EARE
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme and ¥2017F1 A31 BAMDARETERERFE
remain unexercised immediately prior to 31 January 2017 shall ETRANMES 2 R E - B BERIK
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant, BEZHRBERTAITE - BEZTE
notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme. ZHARE E® ©
(B) MOVEMENTS OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (B) RRBREEEF
Movements of the share options, which were granted under the HZE2011F12A31HIEFERN - BER
Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December 2011 MRRERT B 2 RAREE B T (THRIR
are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules: FHRBIE17.07 158 7) :
During the year
R
Lapsed/ Exercise Exercise
Date of grant As at i Granted  Exercised  cancelled As at ¢ price period
Category £5) BEES 11201 BHH  BAE  SEE 01 GBE 78
Director 22
Dr. Li Jun FHEEL 16.05.2007 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 184 15.11.2007 -
14.05.2017
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam R AE 15.05.2007 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 184 15.11.2007 -
14.05.2017
Continuous Contract ~ ESXES 16.05.2007 12,935,000 - - - 12,935,000 184 16112007 -
Employees 14.05.2017
10.10.2007 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 299  10.04.2008 -
09.10.2017
Consultants 1] 15.05.2007 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000 184 15.11.2007 -
14.05.2017
13.02.2008 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000 170 13.08.2008 -
12.08.2018
Total it 36,935,000 - - - 36,935,000
Sun Century Group Limited A3t EEAR AT 31
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SHARE OPTION (ConT’D)

(B) MovemenTs oF THE SHARE OpTION ScHEME (CONT'D)
Notes:

1. The vesting period for all the options granted is six months from the
date of acceptance of the offer.

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment
in case of right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

3. When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount
previously recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses/retained profits.

PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in form of contributions
to the PRC statutory public welfare fund and Hong Kong's Mandatory
Provident Funds respectively.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to requirements of the Listing Rules. Other
transactions which exempted from the requirements of the Listing Rule
are also disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements as related party
transactions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities
during the year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period as set out
in note 42 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

On 6 January 2011, KPMG, who acted as auditor of the Company for the
period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2009, resigned and RSM
Nelson Wheeler was appointed as auditor of the Company.

On 3 November 2011, RSM Nelson Wheeler, who acted as auditor of
the Company for the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010,
resigned and Andes Glacier CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy and hold office until the conclusion of
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
Andes Glacier CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted to the Annual

General Meeting to re-appoint Andes Glacier CPA Limited, as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chau Cheok Wa
Chairman

30 March 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is always committed
to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Company has complied with the principles
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “"CG Code
Provision”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) except for the following deviations:

CG Code Provision A2.1 stipulates that the role of the Chairman and the
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Yijun, the ex-chief executive officer and
an ex-executive director of the Company, has been re-designated as non-
executive director of the Company since 31 January 2011. The role of the
chief executive officer of the Company was shared among the members of
the Board, which meets regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Company. The Board considered that this structure does
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company and believes that this structure enables the
Group to make and implement decision promptly and efficiently. Since 1
November 2011, Mr. Qiu Bin has been appointed as chief executive officer
of the Company, the CG Code Provision A2.1 then has been complied
with. The Board believed that after the appointment of Mr. Qiu Bin as
chief executive officer, the division of responsibilities between chairman
and chief executive officer could be clearly defined and identified, which
enhance the corporate governance of the Company to meet future
development of the Group.

CG Code Provision A4.1 requires that Non-Executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Except for Mr. Lui
Man Wah, all existing non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s Annual General Meeting (the "AGM"). The
Articles of Association of the Company requires one-third of the Directors
to retire by rotation. In the opinion of the Directors, it meets the same
objective as the CG Code Provision A4.1.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company had complied with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
After making inquiry of the Directors, the Company confirmed that the
directors of the Company had complied with the provisions of the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors.
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THE BOARD

Corporate Governance Report 1%

Hh

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors and is responsible
for oversight of the management of the Company’s business and affairs.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company.

28 board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2011.
The attendance of the Directors is set out below:

EFEHAEECEREAR  BRTESER
FRTEFZHEANHIELARE EFEGEER
TRRARIZEBREBER - EFGERER
RETESREREREATATEE AR -

EEENEZE2011F12 A31 BIEFELT28
REH - EFHEGHREESINNT

Attendance/Number of

Directors meetings entitled to attend
RE HER BEREEEEZHE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. CHAU Cheok Wa BlCES e 5/12
Mr. ZENG Yunshu BERSTAE 13/28
Mr. ZENG Sheng B 2/2
Mr. JIN Leo JIN Leo%c 4 0/13
Ms. YE Qingdong EERZ+ 10/24
Mr. OUYANG Junxin BRR5 & 3T 6/12
Mr. LEE Chi Shing Caesar ZEKEE 21/28
Mr. CHAN Ting Lai PREGAESE A& 11/15
Ms. YEUNG So Mui ICEY T3 8/28
Ms. HUANG Ling ® Kot 3/23
Ms. CHAU Sui Heng Az 4/11
Ms. CHAN Wai Leng Bt 4/11
Ms. CHENG Mei Ching BB L 8/12
Ms. YEUNG So Lai ICEY S 10/12
Mr. LEUNG Ming Ho Vincent Pt 10/12
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. ZHANG Yijun REHEA 12/17
Mr. ZHANG Yiyan RIER A 11/22
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Dr. LI Jun * EEL 9/28
Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam REMTAE 11/28
Mr. WANG Fosong FHREAE 5/16
Mr. LI Wai Keung FERTE 5/7
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Yu REM A 2/12
Mr. LUI Man Wah B ERE 0/0

Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate detail and
are kept by the Company Secretary. Draft minutes are circulated to the
Directors for comment within reasonable time after each meeting and the
final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

EZePZE AR ARE  TAR
AMERE - EHLHERNEREARZE
BRENZXZTESHEE  MEAERAHRE
=EM -
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THE BOARD (Conr’p)

The Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant
Directors to discharge their duties.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
all existing independent non-executive Directors and considers them
independent.

The Directors have no fixed terms of appointment but are subject to re-
election at the AGM of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash flows
of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011, suitable accounting policies have been adopted and
applied consistently. The financial statements for the reporting year have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring that the Company
has formal and transparent procedures for developing and overseeing its
policies on the remuneration of the Directors and senior management.
The committee’s authorities and duties are set out in written terms of
reference.

5 remuneration committee meetings were held during the year ended
31 December 2011. Members of the remuneration committee and the
attendance of each member are set out below:

A E

EHE ()

BIEHARESR  EFAEEBATENIE
UEEER  FHERMARRAE -EEE
RHEAAEFRHEEAZBIEEER - U
B BERAE EEITRIS -

AR WIS BT IATE R
PR 2 FEERE - LRAREHABIA
=+ o

BEFURETEY  HEARARTRFASF
RE LERBEF -

ESUMBERRZEE

EEAERBEAZEACREERATREEE
BRAFH R AERN S GRS A28 5
M CEEBERBESREZHBERE - RNF
BIHZE2011F12A31 ALLFE 2B BHEE -
RARIBERRMRERBEEG Z@FTHE - &
BEE2MHRRCIEBECEELERR -

MEZEE

YFNZESAERARAXTES LR MEAN
BF - HFTLEBEERSREEEFM 2R
Ko EZBENRELBRANEEBESE
A o

HFEEeRNEE2011F12A31HILFESR
I6REH - THNEEEXNEBRESZHRESH
REEINAT -

Attendance/Number of

Directors meetings entitled to attend
2= HEE ERLEEEZEE
Dr. LI Jun Z BiE+ 5/5
Mr. ZENG Yunshu BEREE 5/5
Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam SREMIEE 5/5
Mr. LI Wai Keung FEREE 2/2
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Yu REIA S & 0/0
Mr. LUl Man Wah AXELL 0/0
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (ConT’p)

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are aligned with
code provision set out in the CG Code Provision. Given below are main
duties of the remuneration committee:

(i) to make recommendations on the Company’s policies and structure
for all the remuneration of Directors;

(ii) to propose the specific remuneration packages of the executive
Directors, and to make recommendations on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors for the Board's approval;

(i) to review and propose performance-based remuneration for
executive Directors by reference to corporate goals and objectives

resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(iv)  to administer and make determinations with regard to the
Company'’s share option scheme.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an audit committee consisting of four
independent non-executive Directors.

4 audit committee meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2011. Attendance of the Members is set out below:

HiMZ B e (4)

N2 B e e i 80 [ 2 57 RIS ST P AL I
—H o ATRAFMNEZESL2RE :

() BARFAREFMEHFMOBRER

BROEKBEER

(i) BMATEFNFIFHSTERIEZSR
RBtEMITEETNF IR EREE RN
HEEGHAE

(i) 28 %%ﬁTEﬂ%?&E’J“ﬂE*@&%
B EEATESFERRAMNFH K

N

(iv) EEBEAQERBIRE S L EL R

el
BEUEHG

ARRRERIMOMIELIFATEEAKNE

S

o

ES

VN

ERNEE201MF12A31BILFESR
i‘ EXE tljﬁr%_ = u&/}'?%(%ﬁ' QDT

\
m« /

i B

iz

Attendance/Number of

Directors meetings entitled to attend
KB HEE EREEEEZHE
Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam REMEA 4/4
Dr. LI Jun Z BiE+ 3/4
Mr. WANG Fosong FHMIEE 1/2
Mr. LI Wai Keung FREBEE 2/2
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Yu REIR A A
Mr. LUl Man Wah AXELLE 0/0
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (ConT’D)

The terms of reference of audit committee are aligned with the code
provision set out in the CG Code Provision. Given below are the main
duties of the audit committee:

(i) to make recommendations with respect to the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Company’s external auditor, and
to evaluate their independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the
audit process;

(if) to review and monitor the interim and annual financial statements,
reports and accounts of the Company, and to review significant and
judgemental financial reporting issues contained therein;

(i) to review the Company's financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems; and

(iv)  to discuss with the management the system of internal controls,
and to ensure that the management has discharged its duties
and responsibilities in implementing an effective internal control
system.

AupITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the fees paid/payable to auditor

in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided by the auditors
to the Group were as follows:

THEEE (5)

FEZZ B QREEE TGP ArEIE —
H-UTABERZESIZRE

() WHMEE ENZEREBE2ADFNING
REMRLEBER - URFHTHRK
SHBINE RERIZ IR

(i) WMARERARFRNTHRFEEABR
® MERKE - ARBRE ETAEE
BEARRREMHERBREE

(i) fmAARA SRR NEPEEE KA
EERLS &

(iv) HEREIWmAIEERSE  ARER
EREENEZEERNAMEZERSTE
BEETHEBRAREE -

ZEEMEN &
HZE2011F12 A3 HLEFE  BxEAMRA

SEERUOZERS RIERBRBEMEN,FE
NFZERWERNT

2011 2010

RMB’'000 RMB’000

Nature of services REME ARBT T AREFTT
Audit %8

— Current year —KFE 1,216 1,106

— Under provision in prior year —AFETERE 130 202

Others Hh 684 520

2,030 1,828
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee is responsible to make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board's succession. The committee’s authorities and duties are set out in
written terms of reference.

5 nomination committee meetings were held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2011. Members of the nomination committee and the
attendance of each member are set out below:

RHUZH

IED

REZEGRENZAESREFTSHIEE
MESFSRIEEEL ZESZRENBE
HNEHBEDE -

REZEBENHE2011F 12831 BHILFEESR
16X E#% - RBZEBEKNERELBEEFHRE
sy

Attendance/Number of
meetings entitled to attend

HEE BRELFEEHAZHE

Directors

RE

Mr. Wang Fosong FHREAE
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Yu REIM A
Mr. CHEUNG Ngai Lam REMAE
Dr. LI Jun * EEL
Mr. LI Wai Keung TERAEAE
Mr. LUl Man Wah B

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are aligned with code
provision set out in the CG Code Provision. Given below are main duties of
the nomination committee:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the chairman and the president
(chief executive officer).

2/4
0/0
5/5
5/5
2/2
0/0

etk B o B 90 B By BRSPS —
Ho-UTAREZEETERE

() EHRJEZTENRE RELRER(E
AL - MBS MV EME AR
REESRhERES

iy VEAEAREERAIETESEZAL
MEREIRZHEEE 2 AT Sttt
EEgRIEBER

(i) FHEELIFAITERMELE &

(ivi BLEBZITAENRZEEETARESTL

HRXIRE AR (TTHAR) BT80N
HEEEMERSREIEBER -
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective internal control
system in order to protect the Group's assets and shareholders’ interests.
The Board and audit committee also conduct periodic reviews to ensure
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system. The internal
control system includes a well established corporate structure and
organisation with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each
department is responsible for its daily operations, and is also required to
implement and monitor the strategies and polices adopted by the Board
and effective employment of the resources of the Company, in order to
avoid misappropriation of resources and damages made to the Company's
assets, and prevent against errors and fraud.

The Board and audit committee assess the effectiveness of the internal
control system and procedures based on information derived from
discussions with the management of the Company and its external auditor.
The Board and audit committee believe that the existing internal control
system is adequate and effective.

The review covers all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions as well as the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of activities,
responsibility and authority for each department and its management staff
within the Group. The Group has a defined goal for each department to
accomplish, these goals were discussed in the Board meeting and pass on
to the management through the executive directors. These goals will be
implemented and closely monitored by the executive directors who shall
review the operational and financial results from time to time, and to take
any necessary actions for the improvement of it business activities.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company ensures that fair and transparent disclosure is made
for its business and financial performance through a variety of formal
communication channels. Information regarding the Company will be
published in its website: www.hlkg.net. Interim and annual reports,
circulars and notices of the Group will be despatched to Shareholders
in due course. The website of the Company provides information such
as e-mail address, correspondence address, telephone numbers etc. for
inquiries, and provides information on business activities of the Company.

The Company’'s AGM of Shareholders is a good opportunity for
communication between the Board and the Shareholders. Notice of
AGM and related documents will be sent to Shareholders pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, and will be published on the website of
the Stock Exchange.

The Company will also meet with the investment community and respond
to their inquiries about the status of the Company from time to time, so as
to strengthen the contacts and communication between the Company and
its investors.

B B R

AABBBECHEXEBREBREESR
B REERE AR BRI - AR R HEE
EEBTENEMILE - www.hlkg.nete AR
AP R R 8k RO A N R i B B TR
oo ARAPEUMRMHEBEE FE i - B
ik - BEERIBEE B URA QAR ES EEHME
EeftEn -

ARRBREBEFRGREFTGREEEZRR
REBIF R - RERBF RSB REBX
HERE ETRARE T BT RER - A ER
R AT .

RRB TG BRI E R RE Y [ &K FR
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Andes Glacier CPA Limited

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2]
S8 58 Fr it WAy A LA )

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUN CENTURY GROUP LIMITED
(FORMALLY KNOWN AS HONG LONG HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HAGHLEEERAF
(FIRBARMBEERERAR) KRR
2B IR B E
(RESHSZMA LA HRL )

fo o B s R R R

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun Century
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 136 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAZ SR (LA T RS78 [ 349 )) B BRI EHRE
44EEFE 16 EABELEBRBRAR([EA
A REMBAR (%4 [EEE]) NS
R WEEVBRERBIENR2011F12 A 31
AMGREMBERAREBEZB EFENLE
ZEABER  GEESEHRNGERERE
K UREZESHBRMEREMHBER -

o A P R R IS Y AT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

BERREFABBEREEESMASHEMD
BEMBREEAREFE(RAGIDOEER
KEHEEMA VG MBRE - ARFE
ERRVENERANNEZAE  UERES
iR A WIS HRR I B B K iR AR B (w2 BRGF
HERRRMB[AE) ©

A Y B AT

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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FAEEREE - RACBRBEETESAMAE
MO EB BT EAETER - BLERER
HFETERRE  WREIRRNITER - S
BRELSFGERUBRREE TN FEEMER
BAERERAL ©



Independent Auditor’s Report & 3 #Z 24 Ef 3} &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’'s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

ES RITIEFF A B B4R A B IS R P
HeBRMBREERNEZRR - METNERF
HURT 2 BUED #9 H B - 2R R EEF il
R G BAR A M IS MRF A EAH R AI R
b o FERFEZFRERE - ZEENE B EZ QA
mEAEEM AT ARG B 75 MR AR R AR E
B AREHEENEZERF  BXFERHRF
A EEGINRRERRER - BRI EETE
EEMRANGTRENABEERMEHNS
FHAERTH RN - LRI ERAS B HRAE
By HmIR -

HFEE - HPIMESHERERIE SR RIE
BHAHMNEZE RIRHEER -

Tt

552

g

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and of
the Group's results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Andes Glacier CPA Limited
Hsu Yuk King, Mercedes
Practising Certificate Number: P03548

Hong Kong, 30 March 2012

BMRE  ZEREMBEREREREFTETH
HELAEEMATHRE BEEMN2011F
12ANBEMEBRAR BESEEEEZABLE
FEMEERBSRE  VERBES(QBIE
Bz HEENRZ BRE -

BREESTMITERAE
HEREIRSRIS © P03548

B% 20123 H30H
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 44 2 W3 &

EHZ2011 F12 31 HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Turnover

Cost of sales

Less: Sales return of properties sold
Cost of properties returned

Gross profit/(loss)

Other net expenses

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Net (decrease)/increase in fair value
of investment properties

Impairment loss on inventories

Loss from operations

Net change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments

Finance costs

Gain on bargain purchase in respect
of business combination

Gain on derecognition of
available-for-sale financial assets

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Impairment loss on subsidiaries group
classified as held for sale

(Loss)/Profit before tax

Income tax

(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive

(expense)/income for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

E S

SHERA

B BEEMEHERD

REZERA

¥,/ (£#8)

HAth 32 H)5 88
HAbKA
HEKDHER
—REITHRER
Hih £ 25
REMENRAER
CRA) /A nFaR
FE 2 RERR

RemE

ITEERMTANRAED

b
BERKA
BRAXBAGHNZRE

BE W
RIETERAH S

EREEMK S
ekl eIl 6nd

DREAFEREZ B

KB ZRER R
BRBiAT (B518) 5
FRSHE

RERE (B18)HEFIR
2 (FIx%) W R

BT AL FE(E
RABEBA
SEfER fEsn

Bk (B8) &7
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Notes

M EE

18

10

26(a)

11

12

16

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARETT
324,494 1,132,896
(270,857) (864,086)
53,637 268,810
- (313,521)
- 27,776
- (285,745)
53,637 (16,935)
(18,886) (4,125)
15,085 6,516
(7,390) (33,394)
(54,544) (63,097)
(233,344) (216,069)
(752,000) 208,415
(260,506) -
(1,257,948) (118,689)
14,267 15,977
(156,023) (160,934)
- 123,979
33,306 -
81,873 200,801
(8,861) -
(1,293,386) 61,134
175,259 (28,455)
(1,118.,127) 32,679
(1,118,121) 37,609
(6) (4,930)
(1,118,127) 32,679
RMB cents RMB cents
AR¥ED ARED
(Restated)
(E71)
(73.18) 2.50




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4z & B #& AR R 3|/

At 31 December 2011

R2011F 12431 H

2011 2010
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥ETT AREFIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB REtE 17 3,836 9,871
Investment properties B 18 780,000 1,614,100
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 19 - 251,895
Deferred tax assets BRI E E 32 8,924 13,233
792,760 1,889,099
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =& 20 1,273,475 1,782,393
Trade and other receivables JE U AR R % L At LK SR 21 760,199 769,384
Consideration receivables FEU B 22 75,603 153,927
Trading securities BEES 23 2,296 4,060
Pledged deposits EHRTFR 24 1,078 9,431
Bank and cash balances RITRIBEER 25 49,049 92,787
2,161,700 2,811,982
Subsidiaries group classified as DEAFELEZ
held for sale — assets WEEE—-EE 26 447,108 =
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables, FEITBRFR - EABFERK
and accruals LIEREHA 27 963,766 378,286
Receipts in advance TR 28 18,046 120,745
Rental and other deposits HEREMILZS 29 11,768 11,792
Derivative financial liabilities TESRAasE 30 8 14,275
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 31 865,957 823,230
Current tax liabilities BNHAFRIE B (& 138,414 175,601
1,997,959 1,523,929
Subsidiaries group classified as DEAFELEZ
held for sale - liabilities FiEE SR — B (& 26 201,408 -
Net current assets MBEETFRE 409,441 1,288,053
Total assets less current liabilities EEBERRBARG 1,202,201 3,177,152
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 31 447,000 1,112,200
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAE A& 32 98,091 288,726
545,091 1,400,926
NET ASSETS EEFH 657,110 1,776,226
Sun Century Group Limited Afg 42 E=EHRA 7 45
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #r& B # AR R 3R

At 31 December 2011 R2011F 12 A31 H

2011 2010
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt ARBFT ARBTIT
Capital and reserves ERR#E
Share capital &N 33 11,971 11,971
Reserves it 35 645,139 1,763,260
Equity attributable to owners AR IR AEMLER
of the Company 657,110 1,775,231
Non-controlling interests PR - 995
TOTAL EQUITY RERABRE 657,110 1,776,226
Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2012 EESN 201243 A 30 B AL RETE -
Chau Cheok Wa Lee Chi Shing Caesar
SR ZERK
Director Director
Ea 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &2 &8 8k

BE2011 12 A31 HIFFE

At 1 January 2010

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year
Issue of shares

Issue of scrip dividend shares
Special dividend paid in cash
Share options cancelled
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposal of subsidiaries

Change in equity for the year
At 31 December 2010

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year
Disposal of subsidiaries

Change in equity for the year

At 31 December 2011

Notes
iF:3

R201061418

REEETIR

2ENHET

ki 33fa)
33(b)
33(c)

FANRKRERRD 158330

WRETRAIRE 15433
BHRARE 36(c)
KB A 37(a)
HERBAR 37(b)

RERRERD
120106128318

REEFRER
PEXHEE
HEHBAT 37(h)

KRS
R2011512A318

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALRBEAEL
(Accumulated
losses)/
retained Non-
Share Share  Merger  Statutory Capital profits controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve (25TEE)/ Total interests equity
BE  ROEE AHREE  AERE  ERRE  REEA & HEREE  ERSE
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRH
10,296 579,466 24,221 49,313 32455 1022288 1,718,105 2732 1720837
- - - - - 37,609 37,609 4,930) 32,679
704 66,182 - - - - 66,886 - 66,886
20 20,615 - - - - 20,835 - 20,835
167 24,592 = = (14,754) = 10,005 - 10,005
584 74,749 - = = (75,333) = = =
= = = = - (18209 (78,209) - (78209)
= = = = 7) 7 - - -
- - - - - - - 114,566 114,566
= = = = = = - M3y .3
1,675 186,138 = = (14.761)  (115,926) 57,126 (1,737) 55,389
11971 765,604 24,221 49,313 17694 906362 1,775,231 995 1,776,226
- - - - - (1118121) (1,118121) (6) (1,118,127)
- - - - - - - (989) (989)
- - - - - (1,118121) (1,118121) (995)  (1,119,116)
11971 765,604 24,221 49,373 17694 (211,759) 657,110 - 657,110
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z 8B £ RhEXR

48

For the year ended 31 December 2011 £, 2011 %F 12 A 31 H 1FF/Z

2011 2010
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
BisE ARBT ARBTFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES IR SEE)
(Loss)/Profit before tax bR AT (B518), i (1,293,386) 61,134
Adjustments for SHEIER -
Interest income FBHA (3,142) (3,095)
Finance costs RE KA 156,023 160,934
Amortisation and depreciation BHERITE 2,731 3,970
Gain on repurchase of Senior Note FEEE LR - 2,988
Impairment losses on other receivables — E AU R EF A K
and loans and advance BHEREEE - 201,073
Impairment loss on prepaid land costs TBfT Lt AN R E BB - 1,177
Other receivables written off 1S5 5L At B R - 4,222
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, HEME « BEK
plant and equipment g (E1R) 20,714 (625)
Gain on derecognition of RIS
available-for-sale financial assets SREENNE (33,306) -
Gain on bargain purchase in respect BREBENEE
of business combination B W 37(a) - (123,979)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBA RN KE 37(b) (81,873) (200,801)
Net decreasef/lincrease) in fair value of BEMER AR ER
investment properties WA/ () FaE 752,000 (208,415)
Net change in fair value of PTESRIAMN
derivative financial instruments DAEHESFE (14,267) (15,977)
Net unrealised fair value losses BEEBFNAZRANE
on trading securities BEFE 764 425
Impairment loss on investories FEZRERBE 260,506 -
Dividend income REWA - (193)
Net exchange losses B 5 1R F 5 - (2,452)
Operating loss before working capital ZE&&SBRINKLEE (233,236) (119,614)
Increase in inventories FEEM (236,893) (239,701)
Increase in trade and other receivables JFE M AR 3R e LA PR MK R (200,904) (382,472)
Decrease in trading securities EEEHFRD - 1,034
Decrease in pledged deposits EREFFORD 1,615 47,422
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and FERERR - HAER R
other payables, and accruals TEIREREMN (D) 730,369 (77,217)
Increase in receipts in advance TR U BRFRIE 10 69,122 116,525
(Decrease)/Increase in rental AEREMRS (RL),1Em
and other deposits (24) 49
Cash generated from/(used) SEELE/(BA)NEE
in operations 130,049 (653,974)
Income tax paid BRER (23,819) (31,144)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEEBEE/(BA)
operating activities WEEF5E 106,230 (685,118)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows %éiﬁ%iﬁ%i’%

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HZ2011F12H31 A1

|- £E[2F

/=

2011 2010
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BYaE ARBTR ARBTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BBEWIZ « BE K& E (2,906) (14,370)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BERERE
plant and equipment FTiS 508 6,796 9,976
Decrease in consideration receivable JT'EE\LISZNE?X D 88,927
Purchase of investment properties BEREME - (1,473)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEMGEIIE
investment properties 60,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS B A 37(a) - 3,220
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BB AJ{EHE S REE - (216,795)
Proceeds from decognition of available- &R IFERAIEHEL R
for-sale financial assets é?ﬁﬁ@f?ﬂ 272,098 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBEA 37(b) 139,193 428,808
Interest received BEHFIE 3,142 674
Dividend received BEHRRE - 193
Net cash generated from BREEHEENRSFE
investing activities 567,250 210,233
FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES RS ED
Drawdown of bank loans RIRITER 230,357 2,058,157
Repayment of bank loans BRRITER (783,980) (1,364,525)
Repurchase of Senior Note BEELER - (185,645)
Proceeds from issue of shares BIIRMDFTS IR - 10,005
Interest paid BERFIE (156,023) (91,513)
Dividend paid BERRE - (78,209)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEES (BFE)/EE
financing activities HIREFHE (709,646) 348,270
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERFLEEYN
CASH EQUIVALENTS B FEE (36,166) (126,615)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ [EXEHH)FE - 2,452
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1A1BNBRERRESEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 92,787 216,950
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1231 BRERBELEEY
AT 31 DECEMBER 56,621 92,787
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND BeRBEEEBNAIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIA R 49,049 92,787
Bank and cash balances classified "*EHFH’EHEZ
as assets of subsidiaries group MBEE 2
classified as held for sale RITRIR S R 7,572 =
56,621 92,787
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/55 AT

GENERAL INFORMATION

Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ%i&% 5t

" LUAEBETTS

\/,

— Rt

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, the Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Room 2101-2109, Tower F, Xihaimingchu Building,
No. 1 Taoyuan Road, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen 518052,
Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

AR HEHEAMKZIABRA
A o X ¥ = & & Ak 2 A Cricket
Square " Hutchins Drive * PO Box
2681 ' George Town ' Grand Cayman
KY1-1111 » Cayman Islands - B &2
HE R AR EE AR B ([HE])
AR IE L R Pk R BE 1 SR PR e BA B K F R
2101-2109 = - AR AINRMH N EBHE
RGFARAT ([BEAFT]) ER T o

ARARZREERAR  RXZMER
AR E Z XN B RRMEE 41 -

PRAHTET S BRAEFT 7 U i 5 ik
1

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant
to its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on
1 January 2011. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations.
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group's accounting policies, presentation
of the Group's financial statements and amounts reported for the
current and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced
considering the potential impact of these new HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a
material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

Sun Century Group Limited X[t A2 EBE AR A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁ*iﬁ%ﬁﬁ?

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k= #,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Do

" UARBITIT)

F T HHEOR

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial instruments classified as trading securities and
derivative financial instruments which are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise their judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to
the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases. The gain or loss on the disposal
of a subsidiary that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration of
the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company's share of the net assets of
that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that
subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

WEHBHRRDIBIEEEN K REE
A - BB QR EFHR R LA K B <2 A E
ERRARBEBRARMEH ZERRER
RS W EHBWMRDIRELKAT
ﬁﬁ%‘iﬁiﬁ&@ﬁﬁk%Z&L
ME PEREEESFNEBMT AR
EERT A(EHER o

WEBRERDERBEBY K HREERR
2 EhARAETEIERERM
MERBEERNEAZSESHBERBRESF
EL HIl - S REBEAEHE RE TS %%
HEMsBEABRERMTZEHE -

R FEIRR T FE 4 #5R o

NERL ST B RRE A ZERS
BERBFIAT

(a) #HREKRE

BAEMBRERBIEARAREN
BRAREZ12A31 812 W %K
= o M A3 A5 B HE 5 45 I
Zgﬁ ERIERREEZERE 2
BR @ﬂ%%@ﬁ%%ﬁﬂZ%
N o B EAEERGERS
%M’A%ﬁﬁ%TﬁﬁiTﬁﬁ
BEREEZFERTE -

MEAREEHREEEAREE
HisR e AR o B QR EEGE
itz AR bR E AR - BHE
B A B B R R BB 2 AR
) HEREZ AR EMERRE
RZMB AR ZREZ R A ER (i)
KRR A BB EFE
A %M B DR 2 FgRE &
ERABR EL FERERZE
# o

SEARRMZR S  XHERKR
ﬂi AR AN B H 3 - RER BB

BHHE  RIEZRDAERBRTH
%E%ﬁ%ﬁjfﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁ%lﬁﬁ o [t
RAZEAERERTEEE - U
BREAEEMRBEREMR—
B o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ"iﬁ% B &£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5A.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 3. FEEEFHBE(5)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d) (a) #EERE (&)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company's
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

FEFE R R R IEAN D R B S R
i3 (apdl il = NG Sl 22 g e
R M BRRAR ISR A ERE
2\%2%\ WE5 - IR N AR
2EKERAZINRIEERRR
Eﬁi$ RS AREARFEERZ R
EEHBSBEINE -

By Es R BIEA
#% o RAEEKEMEENE 2 S
AR NBEETARREEAR
FEERARRLR o

HRMBAREAREZEE  EE
BEARLE R EEEGIE - BIZIME
H=mRH AR (BNEES AAERR
REMETZRS) o BEBRKIEE
Ptz IREESEHRE - AR
Bﬁtfﬁzﬁ#ﬁﬁ% Al Z AR
o MRS EHBE L SR
EﬁiEHQEH&KEZ/AﬁEﬁﬁ%Fﬁ
ZEAEREEEENERER - I
HETEARAREBA °

EBEHREE

MEB A AEERBEESE
BRIDESUEBI B AR AR -
RARIEE B BRPTAS TR E - PIE
TRATH FELABERIAR
BZRAREFE - WERBRAR
B AR R SR 2 B A RERR
R - WIERARENELRZA
BRAIEERAERKBRSBZ AR

st -

W%WK&&$“??EE@W%
ARABEERBRBEARFELZ
ERARBEINIR - AR FIEMEAH
FEERRERAFEBHKERK
A2 =8 NRaER %w mF
Wiz e - WHEBTAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁ"iﬁ% BTT*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/5

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

3.  FHEEHEBOR ()

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill (Cont’d)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is re-measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is
added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as
would be required if the previously held equity interest were
disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment
losses of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy (v) below. Impairment losses
of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Foreign currency translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency as well as the functional currency
of the principal operating subsidiaries of the Group.

(b)

(c)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁ"ﬁ% B &£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5A.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD) 3. FEEIFEEK(5)
(¢)  Foreign currency translation (Cont’d) (c) HhEEInE (&)
(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial (i) SERBUBHRXZKXZRAE
statements £

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values
in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

SNER BT T R IR X
SRR ERERBERY)
BREH - DMINE 2T 2 8%
ﬁE&ﬁ%%ﬁ%i&%,ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
Rz ERBE o ME B
EEZBENBRSER o

BRAREFEZIEIEEH
HEREEAAEE R ZE
Rl o

fHIEEWEIAR 2 BB E A
2HRRER  AREEZ
EHEPL%M}%EM%@W
miER o MIFEMIAR 2 &
Eﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁnﬁﬁ% CARZAEEZ
EATEE 5L BB 0 MR EE HERR o

M BERRE

WE - BE KR ED K AR R
FHTE RRERIEIER

BEHEBAMEB BELER A

AR AR SR K r] SErt EI18
BRAZERT « BTG A
EEREESERABELEE (]
WABAME) - IEEMBEER
RERMINEEEHHERRE

71
ME - BEKREABRERENA
WEHE AR AR E 2 L - BMEE
RS ENE - TEMHEA
ERFEH 2 FRMT :

54 Sun Century Group Limited X[t A2 EBE AR A &
Annual Report 2011 =& — —F £



Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁiib’z% IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/>

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

UAR

3. EHEEHBOR (8)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’'d)

- Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 40 years after the date of
completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years.

- Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

- Motor vehicles 4 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property
is measured initially at its cost including all direct costs
attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at
its fair value based on valuation by an external independent
valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the investment property are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If a property held for sale becomes investment property, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair
value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in profit
or loss.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3 R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) h UARBETTIT)

g o] =
(BRZHH

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

3.  FHEEHBOR ()

(f) Leases

The Group as lease

(i)

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the statement of financial position as finance lease
payable. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to a produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated over the
lease term or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out
in note 3(d).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁiib’z% IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

UAR

3. EHEEHBOR (8)

(f) Leases (Cont'd)

The Group as lessor

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

(g) Inventories

(i)

(ii)

Properties for future development/under development
for sale

Properties for future development/under development
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs include acquisition costs,
prepaid land lease payments, construction costs,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs
attributable to such properties. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to sale proceeds received
after the reporting period less selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by estimates
based on prevailing market condition. On completion,
the properties are reclassified to properties held for
sale at the then carrying amount. Properties for future
development/under development for sale are classified
as current assets unless the construction period of the
relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Costs of properties
include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease payments,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs attributable to such properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the reporting period less
selling expenses, or by estimates based on prevailing
market condition.
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(g)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

4 N=F"
(Br=H)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

" AN

G5 R 7 i ek

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(h)

(i

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment
within the timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial
assets.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either investments classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. These investments are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these investments are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁ"iﬁ% BTT*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/5

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

3.  FHEEHEBOR ()

(i)

(i)

Investments (Cont’d)

(ii)

Available-for sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets not classified as trade and other
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are recognised in
other comprehensive income, until the investments
are disposed of or there is objective evidence that
the investments are impaired, at which time the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are recognised in profit
or loss. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in profit or loss for equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are not subsequently reversed through profit or
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition. Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss are not subsequently reversed.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market and are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
An allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is
the difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ"iﬁ’z% B &£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/5.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 3. FEEEFHBE(5)

Trade and other receivables (Cont’d)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

(i) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3& IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (f+55F

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

UAE

3. EHEEHBOR (8)

U]

(m)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

(i) Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the
guarantee contracts.

(i)~ Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

(iv)  Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised and

subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value
of derivatives are recognised in profit or loss as they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ%i&% 5t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k&

3.

B E AT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

’ )/‘/\ <

e

EZEHBOR (8)

(n)

(o)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale
is highly probable and the non-current asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁiib’z% IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

UAR

3. EHEEHBOR (8)

(o) Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyers. The
Group considers that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred when the properties
are completed and delivered to the buyers. Revenue
from sales of properties excludes business tax and
other sales related taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the statement of financial position under
receipts in advance.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the operating
leases. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned. Rental income excludes business tax
or other sales related taxes.

Property management income

Revenue from property management is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(o) WARER (&)

(1)

(i1)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ%i&% 5t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k&

3.

B E AT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

’ )/‘/\ <

e

EZEHBOR (8)

(p)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

The Group contributes to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to
the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC. Contributions to the schemes by the Group
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, to the extent that they are not capitalised as
inventories.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁ"iﬁ% BTT*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/5

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

3.  FHEEHEBOR ()

(q)

(r)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at fair value (excluding the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group receives the
services and recognised as expense.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in capital reserve will be
transferred to (accumulated losses)/retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

(q)

(r)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁ"ﬁ% B &£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5A.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 3. FEEEFHBE(5)

(r)  Borrowing costs (Cont’d) (r) BERAKE)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁiib’z% IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/>

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

UAR

3. EHEEHBOR (8)

(s)

(t)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

PRC Land Appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land costs, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. LAT is recognised as an income
tax. LAT paid is a deductible expense for PRC corporate
income tax purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3 R Mz

2=}

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5HATES) + UARETTIR)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

3. FEFEBUR ()

(u) Related parties

1. A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

2. An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is
a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3% IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (f+55F

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

UAE

3. EHEEHBOR (8)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (Cont’d)

2. (Cont'd)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in note 3(u)(1).

(vii) A person identified in note 3(u)(1)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets except investment properties,
deferred tax assets, inventories and financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. \Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ"iﬁ% B &£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5 A,

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD) 3. FEEEFH K (5)

(v) Impairment of assets (Cont’d) (v) EEREGE)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. \Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or nonoccurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R 3R IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Er=5F

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

UAE

3. EHEEHBOR (B)

(x)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when material.

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(x)

BREHKRSEE

RE BN HREHREB MR Z I
ERZBTHERERRLTEE
ZHREHRFASAREHR IR
BRI SRR - WIET BRI Z ]
EHIR IR - MBERE - BIRE
TSR M AR -

4. BASERV B & 3 A

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group's available-for-sale financial assets include
unlisted investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is considered so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably. Accordingly
the Group has reflected these available-for-sale
financial assets at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group determine whether an available-for
sale financial asset is impaired in accordance with
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. In addition, the Group evaluates,
among others, the financial position of and business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, operational and
financing cash flows. The Group's estimates may be
inaccurate and any change in the estimates would

affect profit or loss in future years.

(a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements ﬂﬂ%i&% 3£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR5EAT

4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

. )/‘/\ <

4.

ZESI P ET LTI

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(ii)

Provision for completed properties held for sale
and properties for future development and under
development for sale

As explained in note 3(g), the Group’s completed
properties held for sale and properties for future
development and under development for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group's recent experience and the nature
of the subject properties, the Group makes estimates
of the selling prices, the costs of completion in case
for properties for future development and under
development for sale, and the costs to be incurred
in selling the properties based on prevailing market
conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a
decrease in net sales value, the net realisable value
will decrease and this may result in provision for
completed properties held for sale and properties for
future development and under development for sale.
Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, the carrying value and provision
for properties in the periods in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.

In addition, given the volatility of the PRC property
market and the unique nature of individual properties,
the actual outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may
be higher or lower than estimated at the reporting date.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect
profit or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3k 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

4.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD)

(B =ZFHE9)  UARBTST)

4. BRgA B R B AR ()

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment losses on prepaid project costs

The Group prepaid land and construction costs for
certain projects located on the lands which the Group
has not obtained title documents of the land use
rights. The Group is in the process of obtaining title
documents of these land use rights. Should the title
documents of these land use rights cannot be obtained
subsequently, certain prepaid costs may not be
recoverable. The Group provides for impairment losses
for the unrecoverable costs based on its estimation.
The Group's estimates may be inaccurate and any
change in the estimates would affect profit or loss in
future years.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews the recoverability and ageing of
loans and receivables and provides for impairment
losses if the balances are not fully recoverable. The
assessments involve estimation on the recoverability
of these balances. The Group's estimates may be
inaccurate and any change in estimates would affect
profit or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ﬂﬂ%i&% 3£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

(B 5B AT

. )/‘/\ <

4.

ZESI P ET LTI

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(v)

(vi)

Estimated income taxes (including LAT)

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in the
PRC. Significant estimates are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values calculated on the basis of well-
established valuation techniques using current market
parameters are theoretical values applicable at a
given reporting date, and hence can only be used as
an indicator of value realisable in a future sale. These
techniques involve uncertainties and are significantly
affected by the assumptions used and judgements
made regarding risk characteristics of various financial
instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash
flows, future expected loss and other factors. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect these
estimates and the resulting fair values. Derived fair
value estimates cannot necessarily be substantiated
by comparison to independent markets and, in many
cases, could not be realised in an immediate sale of the
instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3& IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

4.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD)

=] 5
(B =7

UAE

4. BRgA B R B AR ()

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(vii)

(viii)

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 18 to the financial statements,
investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by an independent firm of
professional surveyors after taking into consideration
the net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based
on a method of valuation which involves, inter alia,
certain estimates including current market rents for
similar properties in the same location and condition,
appropriate discount rates and expected future market
rents. In relying on the valuation report, the directors
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

Financial guarantee contracts

Details of guarantees provided by the Group are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements. Based
on expectations at the reporting date, the directors
consider that it is more likely than not that such an
amount will not be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty claiming under
the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

(a) MEEFTHABMEREZEEZRR(H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ"iﬁ’z% B &£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(f

BREH)

5. 4ph T H

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ESREE
Trading securities EEE’“%

Loans and receivables (including

bank and cash balances)

SR MR

(a) SRTENDHE

(BREBITMRSEER)

Financial liabilities A=A
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEN AT ENSRIARE
Derivative financial liabilities PTESmAE

Financial risk management

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

All the Group’s revenue-generating activities were
transacted in RMB. Exposure to foreign currency
risks is mainly attributable to bank deposits, bank and
other borrowings that are denominated in currencies
other than RMB. Foreign currency risk is measured
by employing sensitivity analysis, taking into account
current and anticipated exposures.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that had the
United States Dollars exchange rate (versus RMB)
increased/decreased by 5% (2010: 5%), with all other
variables remaining constant, the Group's loss after
tax for the year would have increased/decreased
by approximately RMB13,000 (2010: the Group's
profit after tax would have decreased/increased by
approximately RMB8,574,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3& IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

(BZEE

UAE

5. &b TH (4)

(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iif)

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity price risk is mainly
attributable to the Warrants (note 30) issued by the
Company. The Warrants are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period and the Warrants' fair
value are changed in response to the change in market
price of the Company's shares.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that had the
market price of the Company's shares increased/
decreased by 10% (2010: 10%), with all other
variables remaining constant, the Group's loss after
tax for the year would have increased/decreased
by approximately RMB3,456 (2010: the Group's
profit after tax would have decreased/increased by
approximately RMB4,339,000).

Credit risk

At 31 December 2011, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has a defined credit policy. In addition, the
Group reviews the ageing of its individual debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

(b) BIBEBRERE (&)

(i)

(iif)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3 R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) h UARBETTIT)

5.

g =] =
(BRZHH

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

5.

ST A ()

(b)

Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(i)

(iv)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The credit risk on pledged deposits, bank and cash
balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings. The Group has arranged
bank financing for certain purchasers of properties and
provided guarantees to certain former subsidiaries,
its tenant and business associates. Details of these
guarantees are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management based on the Group's
internal guidelines on liquidity requirement, including
raising loans to cover the expected cash demand,
and obtaining credit lines, subject to approval by the
Board. The Group's objective is to strike a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of banking facility and other borrowings. The
Group financed its operations and investment activities
with internally generated cash flows, balanced with
proceeds from the line of credit obtain from banks.
There has been no default on repayment of interest
and/or bank borrowings as at year end or at any time
during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3& IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

(BR5H,  UAEBTTS

5. &b TH (4)

(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(iv)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group's non-
derivative financial liabilities (excluding receipts

in advance),

which are based on contractual

undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments

computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest

(b) HIEEBER (&)
(1v) TEEEE R (FE )

TERBRAEEZFETES
BAETRERKET) R
HERZHBTANIEHR
HIRBAENRTARSR
B(BREERANMEGFHE

ZHBARFK - S BT
ES o @'JiﬁﬁAﬁF%F%EZ

. FEFTHE) ARARE l CIE:2
date the Group can be required to pay: fmg}&zﬁii Bt
201
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRTRRLRE
Within ~ Morethan1  More than 2
1yearor yearhbutless yearsbut less More than Carrying
ondemand than2years thanb years 5 years Total amount
—FR -ENEE WMENLE
FREX DRWE DREE RENE b kR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
Trade and other payables, ﬁ%? « Al
and accruals FHRERER 963,766 - - - 963,766 963,766
Rental and other deposits ~ HE R EZE 11,768 - - - 11,768 11,768
Bank and other borrowings  $F{T R EMEE 903,268 464,750 - - 1,368,018 1,312,957
Total Rt 1,878,802 464,750 - - 2,343,552 2,288 491
2010
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ENRMARE R
Within -~ Morethan 1 More than 2
Tyearor yearbutless years butless More than Carrying
ondemand  than2years  than 5 years 5 years Total amount
—FR —ENEE RENER
REEK NES SRE RENE et REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETR ARETR
Trade and other payables, B8RSR + EfuEf
and accruals R RBERER 378,286 = = = 378,286 378,286
Rental and other deposits %ﬁi%&ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ 2,160 714 2477 6,441 11,792 11,792
Bank and other borrowings  $R{TREMIEE 932,519 677,187 245,574 364,630 2,219,910 1,935,430
Total CH 1312965 677.901 248,051 371,071 2,609,988 2,305,508

The above table excluded all non-cash settled

contractual liabilities.

EXRTBERAIHREEE
ZEKEATLE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬁ"ﬁ% B &£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5 A,

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTD) 5. T H ()

(b)  Financial risk management (Cont’d) (b) BEIHERMBEE (&)

(v)  Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. It is the Group’s
intention to keep its borrowings at floating interest rate
with an aim to reflect market costs of funding. It is this
reason that cost of specific borrowings financing the
Group's development projects would be capitalised at
a rate reflecting market conditions. The Group's effect
on changes in interest rate is considered immaterial to
the Group's profit or loss.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% (2010: 1%) in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group's loss after tax for
the year by approximately RMB9,847,000 (2010:
decrease/increase the Group's profit after tax by
RMB10,809,000).

Fair values

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy which has 3 levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3& IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

UAE

=] 5
(B =7

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTD) 5. @I H ()
(c)  Fair values (Cont’'d) () RBAREGE)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December R2011F12 A31 BN AR EBERE
2011 MR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F2E %38 g
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT AR®TRT ARETR
Assets BE
Trading securities BEBEES
— Listed =B T 2,296 - — 2,296
Liabilities afE
Derivative financial liabilities ~ #T4 T E & &
— Warrants — SRR FEE - - 8 8
During the year, decrease in derivative financial liabilities FR-UEIRBEERARE
measured at fair value based on level 3 represented the fair %’Jr§ E’J@TE%E&‘EE\ BN E
value gain of approximately RMB14,267,000 recognised in AP HEABAAALEREHNARE
the profit or loss. 14,267,000 7T °
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December R2010%12 A31 HM AR BER
2010 MZWE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E %2 FEIE “eEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT ARETT ARETT
Assets BE
Trading securities BEBEES
— Listed =B T 3,060 - 3,060
— Unlisted —3EEmM - 1,000 - 1,000
3,060 1,000 — 4,060
Liabilities afE
Derivative financial liabilities ~ #T4 T E & &
— Warrants — RRRERE - - 14,275 14,275
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3 R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (KR53 EF

6. TURNOVER 6.

h o AAEBETTIT)

BRI

The principal activities of the Group are property development and
property leasing in the PRC.

Turnover represents income from sales of properties, rental income
and management fee income recognised during the year, net of
business tax and other sales related taxes and discounts allowed.
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in

RAEENEZEBRETR B EY XM
BRYERE -

EEBINAFEAERNHEDER
ARBESWRARERERKA (ENGRE
EBRREMEEFABBRTM) o AE
ER - ERNEXBEERANSEEZWSD

turnover during the year is as follows:

BEOEREMD

2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTIT
Sales of properties HEMZE 288,552 1,066,386
Rental income H2 WA 24,370 53,407
Management fee income EEBEWA 11,572 13,103
324,494 1,132,896
Less: Sales return of properties sold B BEYEEERR - (313,521)
324,494 819,375
OTHER NET EXPENSES 7 ;H\:'f&i H:ll ?ﬁé‘%{ﬁ
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Loss on repurchase of Senior Note BRELERRCEE - (2,988)
Gain on disposal of property, HEYZE - BER
plant and equipment 2t 2 W 1,386 625
Loss on disposal of investment properties LEREYFE 2 BE (22,100) -
Net fair value losses on trading securities BEEHFN AN BERFE (764) (264)
Net exchange losses bE 5 E518 5 58 (11) (1,498)
Net utilites expenses related to property YMEMEXSBE A LER
leasing business S HFEE (1,064) -
Waiver of other payables R E AR 3,600 =
Others Hith 67 =
(18,886) (4,125)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3& IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (f+55F

UAE

OTHER INCOME 8. HAWe A
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Interest income F B A 3,142 3,095
Reversal of over provision of accruals BERITEIR B R 2 MBS 9,847 =
Dividend income from unlisted investments REFELEMREHRBA - 193
Others Hi 2,096 3,228
15,085 6,516

SEGMENT INFORMATION 9 é}%lg ié*q'

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

Property development - this segment develops and sells office
premises, residential and retail properties. Currently all the Group’s
property development activities are carried out in the PRC.

Property leasing — this segment leases retail properties to generate
rental income and to gain from the appreciation in the properties’
values in the long term. Currently the Group’s entire investment
property portfolio is located in the PRC.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business segment requires different marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 3 to the financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include finance costs, net change in fair
value of derivative financial instruments and corporate income
and expenses. Segment assets include all current and non-current
assets with the exception of trading securities, deferred tax assets
and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all trade and
other payables, accruals, receipts in advance and rental and other
deposits.

AEEFMTMERSEDE -

MERE -—ADHBRERHESFE
FERZENE - BRAKEZREY
ERBEBONHBETT -

MEMRE - ADHBEETE W ABRR
%E%H&U\%M%HXE%%%%@H& @ o IR
RAEE 2 REMEESIUNRTE -

AEE 2z H®EDBREETBER KR
Bz REEBEMN  AREEB DA
FER R T 5 R e - MIRE DI A
EE e

ﬁw

ﬁa‘* % Z BT B B M R M EE 3 P

DEEZED ?ﬁ%ﬂ‘fﬁﬁf@$ o
mﬂmilﬁz AnEEFHFEREEK
ARREZ - »BEEBEMB B &IE
RBEE(REEES  BERBEEER
HMPXEEN) - DHEEREMEE
NERRREMENR - BIREM - AR

AR - HE REMIRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ"iﬁ’z% B &£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/5 4,

9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD)

9. bR (%)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Revenue from external customers
Segment loss
Other information:
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of investment
properties
Reversal of over provision of accruals
Depreciation
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Net decrease in fair value
of investment properties
Impairment loss on inventories
Gain on derecognition of
available-for-sale
financial assets
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Impairment loss on subsidiaries
group classified as held for sale
Additions to segment
non-current assets

At 31 December 2011
Segment assets

Segment liabilities

BZE201MF12A31HLFE

ShREFURA

o EPEE

HEH
HEME - BEREHE
pdl 63
HEREME L FHE

B OITRRE R A MR R
e

AR FORERE

BEMFEORAER
AR
FHZREEER
BRI E SR
AEMWE

& BT 2 B s
DRRFERE Z /B
SEZRERE
FEENMAIERBEE

R2011F12831H
DHEEE

NEPRIR
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BHRARSD

#

Property
development
Y EJEEN
RMB’000

ARBTR

288,552
368,357

1,386

9,847
1,935
160,157

260,506

33,306

80,799

8,861

306

2,437,073

1,123,726

MiEE  EEREENE

Property

leasing
LYEZIh-
RMB’000
AR®T T

35,942
763,461

22,100

730
1,106

752,000

1,074

21

813,109

20,229

Total

A

=N
RMB’'000
AR¥ET T

324,494
1,131,818
1,386
22,100
9,847
2,665
161,263
752,000
260,506
33,306
81,873

8,861

327

3,250,182

1,143,955




Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3& IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

=] 5
(B =7

9. R (%)

UAE

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Revenue from external customers
Segment profit
Other information:
Net increase in fair value of
investment properties
Depreciation
Gain on bargain purchase in respect
of business combination
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Impairment loss on prepaid land cost
Impairment losses on other
receivables and loans and advances
Other receivables written off
Additions to segment
non-current assets

At 31 December 2010
Segment assets

Segment liabilities

BZE2010F12A31BLLFE

SR P A

53 5B Al

Hith&E#Y
REMERAEEINFER

e
BRARBAMNRE
BEWE
HER B AR R RE
TR LK AR AR
HA AR - B K
BB AR 1R

Hofth AR 3
FEENHMAIERB EE

72010512 A31H
HIAE

DERIR

BHARS D WMIE

# (&)
Property Property
development leasing
eSS WERE
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARMETTT ARMET T
752,865 66,510
48,693 242,758
- 208,415
3,321 548
123,979 -
200,801 -
1,177 -
187,597
- 4,222
4,028 29,881
2,817,290 1,688,470
430,207 71,389

w BEERBENE

Total

At
RMB'000
AREBFT

819,375
291,451

208,415

3,869
1123/979
200,801

1,177

187,597
4,222

38,909

4,505,760

501,596
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ"iﬁ% B &£

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/5.

All the revenue generated by the Group for the two years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010 were attributable to customers based
in the PRC. In addition, majority of the Group's non-current assets
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical analysis is
presented.

Revenue from major customers

During the year, revenue derived from the Group's largest customer
which accounted for 10% or more of the Group's total revenue
amounted to approximately RMB69,996,000. This revenue is
attributable to the property development segment. During the
year ended 31 December 2010, revenue derived from the Group's
largest customer which accounted for 10% or more of the Group's
total revenue amounted to approximately RMB466,240,000.

9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 9. HEER(4)
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and FEREHIIER - BERESENYE
liabilities
2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET
(Loss)/Profit (B18) /%A
Total (loss)/profit of reportable segments BE D E (B518) wH4e%E (1,131,818) 291,451
Other income and other net expenses E A A R E MRS 1 FEE 2,082 1,988
Depreciation and amortisation e R (32) (101)
Corporate finance costs EREKAR (156,023) (160,934)
Net change in fair value of derivative PTESRMT AR EEEFHE
financial instruments 14,267 15,977
Other corporate expenses Hib 2R (21,862) (87,247)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before tax B AARS (B518), 5T (1,293,386) 61,134
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments BREDHEELT 3,250,182 4,505,760
Trading securities BEES 2,296 4,060
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE = 8,924 13,233
Unallocated corporate assets REEDTENDEEE 140,166 178,028
Consolidated total assets ImEBEE 3,401,568 4,701,081
Liabilities =N
Total liabilities of reportable segments BEREDHEERTE 1,143,955 501,596
Current tax liabilities BNEAFHIE & (R 138,414 175,601
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIHE & 98,091 288,726
Unallocated corporate liabilities ReEDTEMBFEAE 1,363,998 1,958,932
Consolidated total liabilities rERAaE 2,744,458 2,924 865
Geographical information ith B E R

REBRBZE2011F %2010 12 A 31
BLESMEFEEENMERAL SRR
REEREE - i AEBHKTH
ERBEEHMNFE - At - WAREZ
B b [& AT

REETEFFHWA

FR AEEREZAZTFHEKA UL
REBHAKA10% KU L) HAARE
69,996,000 7T ° &YX A 57 /B8 A ¥ £ B 8%
DEL - HZE2010F 12 A31 BILFEE » K
BAKERARFHIRAMGAEE B
A4 A R ¥ 466,240,000 7T B9 10% 35 A
J:o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 &A1 " UARBITIT)
10. FINANCE cosTS 10 @& A
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000

11.

Interest on bank and other loans wholly
repayable within five years
Interest on Senior Note

Total borrowing costs

Less: Amount capitalised

ARRFAEEEEHRTT
ERREMEERNS
BEZENE

R BZNGER

o BEAMERR

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at interest rates ranging
from 5.60% to 6.98% per annum (2010: 5.13% to 20.00% per

annum).

INCOME TAX

11.

AR¥ETT ARBFT

178,423 212,025

- 45,093
178,423 257,118
(22,400) (96,184)
156,023 160,934

BEEKAE 2B FEF ENF560% =
6.98% (20104 : FF%5.13% £20.00%)
FIAEAAL

Pt

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income:

Current tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax

— Under provision in respect of prior year
PRC Corporate Income Tax

— Provision for the year

— Under provision in respect of prior years

LAT
- Provision for the year
— Over provision in prior years

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Effect of changes in tax rate on
opening deferred tax balances

IR

BEMEH
— LFET A

Bl E RSB
—FEREE
—AEEETRERE

B+ 3t IR E Y
—FREE
— AR

IEFERL TR
ERER7EANED

TR B EH IR RIR
el

(a) HEREWZRABFIE

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%F T ARBFT

16 =
13,343 56,255

- 60

13,359 56,315

- 37,512

- (151,610)

- (114,098)

13,359 (567,783)
(188,618) 87,661

- (1,423)
(188,618) 86,238
(175,259) 28,455
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/% 5%5/

11.

INcoME TAX (CONT’D)

. I iaAR (4)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income: (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2010:
nil) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax is based
on a statutory rate of 25% (2010: 25%) of the taxable profits
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules
and regulations in the PRC for the year ended 31 December
2011, except for certain subsidiaries of the Group located
within the special economic zones in the PRC for which
the applicable preferential tax rate is 24% (2010: 22%). The
preferential tax rate will be increased to 25% for the year
ending 31 December 2012. Accordingly, the deferred tax of
the Group is recognised based on tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled.

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for
sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditure including lease
charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditure.

Sun Century Group Limited X[ttt i2EE AR A &
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(a)

FEREBERANGIE  (8)

BERAERESREBR IS ([H
%Eﬁﬁénmﬁ@&ﬁw A&

BESMFASHS R IE R R
%mﬁﬁ%am BEEFNEHER
REBEBFTEL 2 fh T R = Fi%
FHE16.5% (20104 : ) {EH &
f& -

R (b FE TS B 4 T IR R R B A
i2m1$12ﬂ31ELtEﬁWH%
/) BT 15 Bt 48 Bl K #2451 78 1€ /9 25 %
(20104F : 25% ) & &R Bt i 7 )%
FELLRAE - EAREEETARF

B E R 2 B A RIBRIN - ZE
MERARMNBEAEEREAE24%
(20104 : 22%) - BEH EHER
202F12A3MBIEEELEAE
25% ° Et - AN B AREFR E
B A E s E N B BRI TE
R Z AR A BB R AR o

REBHEMBEROMERRLH
BEEIEIA30% 2 60% ) RAED
R ghin e B+ 3B EF - ARIEE
BB DR ET TR HEYERR
BRIBR A X (B L (E
REEESH - %%&K&%E%
HEBRMAX)H
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3k 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (KR A,

INcoME TAX (CONT’D)

N/ = ik 51 == )
" UA BB ITIT)

(b)

Reconciliation between income tax and accounting

(loss)/profit at applicable tax rate:

(Loss)/Profit before tax

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before tax
calculated at 24% (2010: 22%)
in Shenzhen
Effect of changes in tax rate on
opening deferred tax balances
Tax effect on LAT deductible for
calculation of income tax purpose
Tax effect on reversal of LAT for
calculation in prior years
Tax effect on change of tax rate
Tax effect of different tax rates
applied to certain PRC subsidiaries
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised
LAT
Reversal of LAT provided
in prior years
Under-provision in prior years
Others

Income tax

BEiAT (E51R),Sa

ORI 24%

(20104 : 22% ) s EHIBRFR Al

(B18) B FeBEHIEA
79 5 S B 4 R AR FE A TR
iz
A FEFTSBANIR A R B
TR EFNORBTE
SHE A FE AP B LR (E A
BRENHAZE
RS LA 2
BRNE T R EINE AR RF
RS Z
BR B ANTIRZE
NRHIR S R R R
AT LATER AR B AR E IR A
TR
R IR AR
AT FEREN T E
T IR (E R R
AEFET R
Hith

P s Bt (7))
BREAREGTENESHRESS
(B18),HmRHEER

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT
(1,293,386) 61,134
(310,413) 13,449
- (1,423)

- (8,364)

- 22,670

- 26,644

3,260 10,303
(6,824) (23,975)
126,994 87,902
6,301 15,366

- 37,512

- (151,610)

16 60

5,407 (79)
(175,259) 28,455
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

=}

A L ek, I/ W — 71/ —= )
(BR=ERTEI)  UAEBETIR)

12. (LoSS)/PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/ 12. A4EBE (18 ) /W A & 2 T
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ( Eﬂ i )/q&ﬁl‘ﬁ%@ ’gﬂ
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Depreciation e 2,731 4,277
Less: Amount capitalised B BENMEEER (34) (307)
2,697 3,970
Auditor’s remuneration: IZE AN S
— Current year —ARFE 1,216 1,106
— Under provision in prior year — EFETEEE 130 202
— Other services — H AR 684 520
2,030 1,828
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: BIXABREEEHE
— Salaries, bonus and allowances —I%& - e fEa, 24,479 43,002
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions —RIRB AT B 2,935 2,010
27,414 45,012
Less: Amount capitalised W BRNMEESER (2,238) (8,121)
25,176 36,891
Operating lease charges in respect of: ATEENECEHEERR :
— Sub-leased properties —HiaME 5,846 7,531
- Office premises and staff quarters —WAERBEIREE 4,800 1,275
Cost of inventories sold TFEHEKA 256,402 809,237
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEUBR TR 2 R B B 18 161,263 -
Impairment losses on other receivables A ERERR R E R R B
and loans and advance ZBMEREE - 201,073
Impairment loss on prepaid land costs TEf A 2 R E R - 1,177
Other receivables written off Lt RS - 4,222
Direct outgoings (note) BERZ (W) 14,455 27,073
Note: B E

Direct outgoings represent operating lease charges (in respect of sub-leased

properties which are disclosed separately above) and management fee

expenses.

ERFAXELXBYURBENEEYELEHE
ERRERERX -
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13.

Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3k 3R Mz

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2= B 45 4
(B 5B ATES)

13. HHFLIEAME

C UARBTTITR)

The emoluments of each director are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2011

Name of director

Executive directors

CHAU Cheok Wa (Note (a))
ZENG Yunshu

ZENG Sheng (Note (b))

JIN Leo (Note (c))

YE Qingdong (Note (d))
OUYANG Junxin (Note (e))
LEE Chi Shing Caesar
CHAN Ting Lai (Note (f))
YEUNG So Mui

HUANG Ling (Note (g))
CHAU Sui Heng (Note (h))
CHAN Wai Leng (Note (h))
CHENG Mei Ching (Note (a))
YEUNG So Lai (Note ()

LEUNG Ming Ho Vincent (Note (a))

Non-executive directors
ZHANG Yijun (Note (i)
ZHANG Yiyan (Note (j))

Independent non-executive
directors

LI Jun

CHEUNG Ngai Lam

WANG Fosong (Note (k)

LI Wai Keung (Note (1))

CHEUNG Kwok Yu (Note (m))

Total

EENE

HITEE

B (M5 ()
255 (P (b))

JIN Leo (i (c))
EER (M)
BRI (EE (e)
BrSiE (P ()
I (M (g)
BRI )
BRELR (FizE(h)
#3272 (ML (a)
BEE (M (a)
288% (i3 (a)

FHTEEF
RE (M)
R (MR ()

BUHHTEE

&35

SREH
THAR (B (k)
EXEA(RE))
B (PI7E (m)

it

BEFEMEWT

BZE2011F 12831 BLEEE

Retirement

Salaries and benefit scheme

allowances Discretionary  contributions
Fees e bonus RIRER Total

e PSR BETEAL sTEIHR 5

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWF R AR¥TR AR¥ETT ARBT R AR¥ETRT
33 - - - 33
- 867 - 10 871
- 52 - 1 53
33 131 - - 164
- 413 - 7 420
- 227 - 5 232
91 - - - 91
59 - - - 59
91 - - - 91
- 275 - - 275
33 - - - 33
33 - - - 33
33 - - - 33
33 - - - 33
33 - - - 33
83 152 - 8 243
33 757 - 9 799
114 - - - 114
114 - - - 114
73 - - - 73
53 - - - 53
41 - - - 41
983 2,874 - 40 3,897
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (&5 &AESN AN EETIIR)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D) 13. =FHEMIEEMNS (55)
Year ended 31 December 2010 HZE2010F12 A31 BILFE
Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme
allowances  Discretionary  contributions
Fees e bonus RINEA Total
Name of director E £z ik K2R WA HE 5 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors HiTEE
ZENG Yunshu DER - 1,813 45 32 1,890
ZHANG Yijun REH - 2,012 30 33 2,075
ZHANG Yiyan REK = 1,773 39 9 1,821
ZENG Sheng = - 1,743 39 32 1814
YE Qingdong HER - 855 18 32 905
OUYANG Junxin BTl - 467 9 30 506
LEE Chi Shing Caesar (Note (n)) ~ Z&A% (5 (n) 26 - - - 26
CHAN Ting Lai (Note (f) BRStE (k) 26 - - - 26
YEUNG So Mui (Note (o)) &1 (15 (o) 26 - - - 26
HAN Qinchun (Note (p)) B5% (o) - = = - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
LI Jun et 131 - - - 131
CHEUNG Ngai Lam SRIRM 131 - - - 131
WANG Fosong ERi:ZN 131 - - - 131
LI Wai Keung (Note () AR ) 103 = = = 103
Total 5t 574 8,663 180 168 9,585
Note: B
(a) appointed on 2 September 2011 (a) R2011F9 A2 BERFE
(b)  resigned on 14 January 2011 (b) 20114 1A 14 BEHT
(c) appointed on 29 July 2011 and resigned on 5 December 2011 (c) R201147 29 BEZRTIEM 2011 4F
12 A5 BEHE
(d) resigned on 30 November 2011 (d) 2011411 A30BEE
(e) resigned on 31 July 2011 (e) ®201147 A 31 BET
(f) appointed on 4 October 2010 and resigned on 2 September 20711 (f) 2010410 A 4 BEZERRK 2011 F
9 A2 HABHT
(@  appointed on 5 January 2011 and resigned on 5 December 2011 (@@ R2011F1ABEZEEZERR
2011410 A 5 BEHE
(h) appointed on 2 September 20711 and resigned on 31 December 2011 (h) R2011F9 A2 AERERN20114F12
A 31 BEHME
0] re-designated on 31 January 2011 and resigned on 3 November 2011 (i) 201141 A31 BFAERNR2011F 11
A3 AT
(i) re-designated on 30 June 2011 and resigned on 24 November 2011 (i) 7201146 A30BFAFEKRR2011F11
A 24 ABHE
(k) resigned on 5 September 2011 (k) 201149 A5 HEHE
0] appointed on 16 March 2010 and retired on 27 May 2011 (1) 201063 A 16 BEZERN 20114
5827 BiR{E
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B35 HHTES) + UAEETTIR)
13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D) 13. EHEAIBEEME ()
Note: (Cont'd) Bt - (&)
(m)  appointed on 5 September 2011 (m)  M2011F9AAERME
(n) appointed on 30 September 2010 (n)  M2010F9A30HEZE
(o) appointed on 5 October 2010 (0) 2010410 A5 BEZE
(p)  resigned on 19 January 2010 (P H20105F 1 A 19 BEHE

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during the year.

The five highest individuals in the Group during the year included 3
(2010: 5) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining 2 individuals for
the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out below:

Fra SoRRh
RRTERHEIHER

Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

The emoluments of the 2 individuals with the highest emolument is
within the following band:

Number of
individuals
EEHE
2011
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =2 1,000,000 77T
(equivalent to approximately R\MB818,000) (FHERA AR 818,0007T) 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

U ELZHEENAFERERRBNE
EATBNE -

AEERAFEREBEaME AL RE
3HREE(2010F : 55) » EBE&FHN L
X e Hep2B#HE2011F12A31H
LEFERSAENT

2011
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

1,114
20

1,134

HEtp2mMlemxam AT EE M
T~

AEER  ARBBEEAETEELR
EHMMALE WS - FARIEE
IPET Y ESSIPNTS: [COE
BB -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3 R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 BATES) + AN

14. (Loss)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

5T

14.

A I HEA N EAG Ol 48 i
A

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the
Company includes a loss of approximately RMB22,847,000 (2010:
RMB154,966,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

15. DIVIDENDS

15.

RATHEES AELLGE (B18), 756
4 A R % 22,847,000 7T B & 18 (2010
£ AR%164,966,0007T) © Z/EBEED
RAR B A RRPEIE

Jik B

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: nil).

A special dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share, in the form of
cash or in the form of scrip dividend or a combination of these, was
declared on 5 February 2010 and was recognised as distribution on
31 March 2010:

2010 special dividend 2010 F 45 RIARE

Sun Century Group Limited &5 t42 =B HR A 8
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BERVERZFRMNEZE2011F12A318
IEFERBARKRS (20104 : ) -

BRREAEAR0.15 T (B & 75 XA
RERGH A brE mER ) BRI
B R2010F2 A BEIRIMN 20104
3A31 BRERAEDIK :

—

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT

- 153,542
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3 3& IZﬁ*I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(LosS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

16.

(BR5H,  UAEBTTS

ik Uk18) A

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following

data:

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company
and (loss)/earnings for the purpose of
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
(loss)/earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed
exercise of the share options
outstanding during the year

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
(loss)/earnings per share

ARBFEE NEEEFRERREE(E

AREHER AFARENS (B1R),

BN R EERERR
#E (BR), /&af
2 (F518) /&

ATEESRER (BR) Bz
ERaLell-Real

BRITERFARARITEZ
R IRIR RIATR(E
AT BB 2

ATESKREE (BR) B
2 BB AE T 15 8L

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of calculating basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share for both
periods have been retrospectively adjusted for the effect of bonus
element in connection to the open offer (see note 42(a) to the

financial statements) completed in January 2012.

The Company's outstanding warrants had no dilutive effect on
(loss)/earnings per share upon deemed exercise during the two

years ended 31 December 2011.

R)/BRHEEENT
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
(1,118,121) 37,609

Number of shares

RHER
2011 2010
(restated)
(&%)
1,528,001,590 1,501,800,418

- 1,489,625

1,528,001,590  1,503,290,043

FAEZ M A E SR EAR RS (5
B),/BF 2G5 nEFHEE 2012
F1AREKZ ARBE (RUBHRRIE
42(a)) FRE AL FIE D 2 2 MmiEH BB
GL

KREBZ MATERBREZRBE AR
HZ2011F12 A31 B IE&EWEFERTT
FRITEYSR(EE) BIEEES
FE o
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//SH

YN

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k&

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 3 ~ Bz Rkt
Buildings
held for Furniture
own use Leasehold and Motor
#{EEA  improvements fixtures vehicles Total
BF HEEE FEREE B st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT ARBTT ARETFT ARETTT
Cost A
At 1 January 2010 R2010F1 818 3,470 4,253 3,621 9,034 20,278
Additions R 9,634 576 3,154 1,006 14,370
Acquisition of subsidiaries L EEUNG - - 128 2,212 2,340
Disposal e (9,634) = (325) (1,631) (11,590)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAA (730) (558) (3,275) (4,563)
At 31 December 2010 201012 A31H
and 1 January 2011 %2011E181H 3,470 4.099 5,920 7,346 20,835
Additions R - 2,532 374 - 2,906
Disposal HeE (3,470) (3,882) (127) (1,296) (8,775)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (589) (552) (1,141)
Transfer to subsidiaries group 3’3}7%;—%%@7—?%
classified held for sale HEZHBER - - (321) (609) (930)
At 31 December 2011 M2011E12A31H - 2,749 5,257 4,889 12,895
Accumulated depreciation ZEHNE
At 1 January 2010 201061418 1,278 2,646 1,675 4,758 10,357
Charge for the year AEEHE 278 260 1,426 2,313 4,277
Disposal HE (76) - (282) (1,220) (1,578)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (600) (335) (1,157) (2,092)
At 31 December 2010 #2010 12 8318
and 1 January 2011 %201ME1R1H 1,480 2,306 2,484 4,694 10,964
Charge for the year AEEHE 67 712 995 957 2,731
Disposal HeE (1,547) (487) (68) (1,263) (3,365)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBL - - (425) (522) (947)
Transfer to subsidiaries group ir?ffvz"\iﬁ?%% 1E
classified held for sale HEZHBEE - - (166) (158) (324)
At 31 December 2011 R201ME12831H - 2,531 2,820 3,708 9,059
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2011 R201ME12831H - 218 2,437 1,181 3,836
At 31 December 2010 #2010%12 A31H 1.990 1.793 3,436 2,652 9.871
In 2010, the Group changed the estimated useful lives of certain R2010F @ AEEEE THREREEDN

EERAEAFHRAFRE=F A%
Al A FREDLE

furniture and fixtures from 5 years to 3 years and motor vehicles
from 5 years to 4 years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

‘( i~ / //‘4:7 ,’59"/‘/

YN

18. &M

At 1 January ®1A1R
Transferred from inventories HEATFER
Additions NE
Disposals HE

Net (decrease)/increase in fair value

At 31 December

(a)

(b)

(c)

®12 A31H

All of the Group's investment properties held under operating
lease for rental purposes are measured using the fair value
model. The Group's investment properties were revalued as
at 31 December 2011 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Ascent Partners Transaction Services Limited (2010: revalued
by Knight Frank Petty Limited), who has among their staff
Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of properties being
valued, on a market value basis calculated by reference to the
net rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

After 31 December 2011, the Group entered a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of Hong Long Plaza at
RMB780 million. A decrease in fair value of RMB715 million
loss has then been recognised during the year ended 31
December 2011.

The Group's investment properties at their carrying amounts
are analysed as follows:

In Shenzhen, PRC AR BRI
- Long lease —RHEHEE
— Medium-term lease —hEIfEE

RAaEEM, CRD)

R

(a)

(b)

(c)

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AR®FT
1,614,100 1,376,436
- 27,776

- 1,473

(82,100) =
(752,000) 208,415
780,000 1,614,100

AEEREYHEE2011F12 A31
HEBEAHEHENENLE R
BEANPCBNBBIEMEe
BRESEREENBELASMIT
NHEBERSRBEER AT (2010
F:HEGAGFEHITERARE
B RBEAHMEEELERSK
ANFRBUET RAENESBAE
fly

R2011F12 831 81& « AEBER]
BB - MARE780,000,0007T
HEBERES - AR 715,000,000
TTZ AR EREREE MR 2011512
A 31 BILFERNER °

REBIREYFIREREE D0
T~

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARETT
780,000 1,671,700

- 42,400

780,000 1,614,100
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(G5 EHE9) » AABRETIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

18. HEWE (K1)

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT D)

19.

(d)

(e)

The Group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to twenty years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None
of the leases has significant contingent elements as at 31
December 2011.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
noncancellable operating leases from investment properties

(d) AEERBEEHESEAETRE
M o MEZEMANYLE BH—
E-TFERNRZBEBIREEM -
i & B T B (R K I Rl E TS o i
201112 A31H - 25HEHT
EERIAEE -

REBRETAIHENEEHEED
REMEEBRERNREBRER

are receivable as follows: TH@EgEmN
2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTIT
Within one year —FR 34,711 36,952
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEERF (BEMEREEAN) 122,782 140,203
After five years hF® 215,586 248,905
373,079 426,060

At 31 December 2011, all investment properties of the Group
were pledged against certain bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group and details of which are set out in note
31(d) to the financial statements.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(e) M20115F12A318  AEBFA
BEMECIER FAEEE TR
REMEFERZ B - BREFER
REF SRR M 31(d) °

19. WAL B SRl E

Unlisted equity securities, at cost (note (a))

Unlisted limited partnership, at cost (note (b))

Sun Century Group Limited A5 t42 =B H R A 8
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FE LIRS - AR (MiEE (a) -

FEMAREGRERE
A (BIEE (b)) -

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT
249,395

2,500

- 251,895
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/5

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONT’ D)

. AR

Sl 7 (5)

(a)

In January 2010, the Group entered into a share transfer and
project cooperation agreement (the “Agreement”) to acquire
100% equity interest in Shenzhen Huaxingguang Industrial
Company Limited (“Huaxingguang”), a company established
in the PRC with registered capital of RMB10,000,000 and
is principally engaged in property development. Under the
Agreement, the Group is required to pay RMB25 million to
the vendors and to assume the debt amount of Huaxingguang
of approximately RMB148,758,000. The vendors are also
entitled to share the developed properties in accordance with
the Agreement.

Pursuant to certain supplemental agreements subsequently
entered by the Group, additional consideration of
approximately RMB206,142,000 and a compensation of
approximately RMB 143,000,000 are also required to be paid
by the Group to the vendors.

In 2010, 22% equity interest in Huaxingguang was
transferred to the Group. However, the Group was required
to pledge its 22% equity interest in Huaxingguang in favour
of the vendors as performance guarantee for the full payment
of the consideration. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group has no significant influence over
Huaxingguang as the remaining 78% of the issued capital
is controlled by a third party independent of the Group. The
Group has no representative on Huaxingguang's board of
directors and has no right to appoint or remove a director to
the board of directors until the Group obtained 55% of the
equity interest in Huaxingguang. In view of the above, the
directors of the Company concluded that the Group has no
significant influence over Huaxingguang.

In 2011, after negotiations between the Group and the
vendors of Huaxingguang, both parties agreed to rescind
all share transfer and project cooperation agreements and
supplemental agreements in relation to the acquisition
of Huaxingguang, The Group's 22% equity interest in
Huaxingguang with carrying amount of approximately
RMB250,694,000 was therefore transferred back to the
vendors at a consideration of RMB284,000,000.

At 31 December 2010, the Group's capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of Huaxingguang amounted to
approximately RMB273,505,000.

(a)

R2010F1 8+ AEBEFIZ— 1A
BheEELEEBEE A ERS(ZH
#F) NKERMEREEES
AR ([EHE]) ZEPRRE - EH
BRI - EMERAARE
10,000,0007C * T E R EWEFH
o BEZWE  AKEEARNEA
=t AR #25,000,000 7T I A HE 2
B E R B 75 49 A R ¥ 148,758,000
Lo BANMBEBREZHEZEH
B -

RIBEAREEEIRTZOE TR
& AEBTVARE T NEIME
B4 AR ¥ 206,142,000 7T R ##{E
#) AR ¥ 143,000,000 7T ©

MR20104F - EHER22% KIED
EREALEE - A - AREBEEL
B A NEIREEER 22 % ik
BERBHZHRENBLORE -
AABEERE  NEEHEFRE
WEEBATES  ARHTIS%H
ERTRABHBINAEEHE=
FIESl e AEBNERENESS
WERR  NTERZEXERES
CES HEASERBEAERN
55% Mt o B2 LA _EFTat - AA T
EERE ASEUEFAEWEE
KRBT o

2011 F - KERER - AEBEEEE
FEME 775 A = RE AT L
BERE=BRERNDEERER
EEmE k@R HE - Bt &
SEREEEREZEREEEOA
R ¥ 250,694,000 TIAKEBARE
284,000,000 L& [E T & /5 °

MR2010F 128318 A&EEE
FTHVBARRERE B 5 3Rk A 3t 2 R
BIEEBENEARAZOAARKE
273,505,000 7T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/55 AT

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONT’ D)

" LUAEBETTS

\/,

19. WAL pE E (4

(b) The Group's investment in a limited partnership, established
in the PRC, was set up with the investment objective of
investing in real estate in the PRC. At 31 December 2010, the
Group's capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of the unpaid
capital contribution to the limited partnership amounted to
approximately RMB22,500,000.

The investment was disposed of in 2011 through the disposal
of a subsidiary.

The Group's available-for-sale financial assets are stated at cost less
any impairment losses at the reporting date as these investments
do not have a quoted market price in an active market and the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is considered so significant that
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

20. INVENTORIES

20.

(b)

REETBRENT EEHENE
EHEMBEERERAZLE R
BB R ) e 2010812 A 31
B AEBEETHERRERAETTE
BEARBREABLENAMNEE
EEBENEARINBARE
22,500,000 7T °

ZERER20MFEBHE—R
B ARIMTLALE -

REEN A HE S REERRARE
MREBENREBRIE  ARZE
REVEEZRTSNTSRE - B5R8
RAAER[FBERRARKN  BERR
AEFRRAEAABRAMSEME -

wE

Properties for future development B Y AR 2R B
and under development for sale RERERpYE
Completed properties held for sale FHEHERNE R T Y

(@) The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land included in
properties for future development and under development for
sale and completed properties held for sale is as follows:

In PRC H
— Long leases —RHEE
— Medium-term leases —hEIEE
100 Sun Century Group Limited X[t A2 EBE AR A &

Annual Report 2011 =& — —F £

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETT ARETT

1,000,194 1,058,282
273,281 724,111
1,273,475 1,782,393

BREERHENRRAELERT
MERFEHENERTHEAD
HELHREEI TN

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT

217,468 311,824
- SeY
217,468 315,783
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/5

20. INVENTORIES (CONT'D) 20. & (&)
(@  (Cont'd) (a) (%)
Included above are amounts totalled approximately e BREEAENAR
RMB15,288,000 (2010: RMB15,288,000) representing lease # 15,288,000 C (2010 4 :
payment for land use rights of certain pieces of land in the 15,288,000) * Bl A B+ B & T ig
PRC. The Group is in the process of applying for the land use ii‘@ﬂ’\]iﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁﬂf?ﬁﬁ o AR
right certificates subject to the approval from the relevant SEIFRF T ERAES - EARF
PRC authorities. HERE B L o
Based on the legal opinion obtained, the directors of the RIBFMEGRERER - AAF]
Company are of the opinion that the Group is the beneficial E$7 ﬁ$%.ﬁit@1§ﬁﬁﬁémﬂﬁﬁ
owner of the land use rights and is entitled to lawfully and HEEAN  WHEEAZERERAZSE
validly use these land use rights. T Hb{E FARE o
(o)  The amount of properties for future development and under (b) TEHIHB—FLAZA I ERAMEE
development for sale expected to be recovered after more EARARAEREEFVWENSES
than one year is analysed as follows: anR :
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Properties for future development M H KR 2R R 3
and under development for sale RERBYIZE 345,871 780,021
Apart from the above, all inventories are expected to be B £k ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂf 5 7B Bl £
recovered within one year. —FREH
(c) At 31 December 2011, certain inventories were pledged (c) M2011FE12A318: & FFE
against bank loans granted to the Group and details of which AR SBERRITE RIS
are set out in note 31(d) to the financial statements. T FEB RN IS IRERMIFES1(d)
(d  During the year ended 31 December 2010, included (d) R # =2010F12A318 Lk F

in the additions to the Group's properties for future
development and under development for sale is an amount of
approximately RMB240,217,000 which was acquired through
acquisition of a subsidiary, Boshing Investments Limited.
Boshing Investments Limited and its subsidiary, Chaohu
Boshing Tourism Development Company Limited*, are
principally engaged in property development. The directors
are of the opinion that the acquisition of subsidiaries was
in substance acquisition of assets, instead of acquisition
of businesses, and therefore was not accounted for as a
business combination.

* For identification purposes only

B AEEBHEENRKFAER
CRAMERNBELOARE
240,217,000 7T * #Z 3 E 035 B UK
BB ARERERERRAR
MER - EFREFR DA REHM
BARENERKEREER AR
TERSVEMRE - EZRA WK
BHEAREEAKRBEE M3k
IR - Bt W EIRER A HA
E,Eo

* (EXET=3]
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(225
(PRFR/)

h - YA EBETTIT)

21. M WU sk e Al JE Wk

Trade receivables (note (a))
Other receivables (note (b))
Loans and advances (note (c))
Prepaid land costs (note (d))
Prepayments and deposits

UL AR (HT7E (a)

Ho At R (FT3E (b))
BN E R (KL ()
FER LA (FfRE (d)
BNRRES

(a)  Trade receivables are mainly arisen from leasing and sales
of properties. Rental receivables from tenants are due on
presentation of invoices and no credit terms for sales of
properties unless otherwise specified in the underlying

agreements with the purchasers.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice
date for property leasing and delivery date for property sales,

is as follows:

0 to 3 months

More than 3 months but less
than 6 months

More than 6 months but less
than 1 year

Over 1 year

Sun Century Group Limited A5 t42 =B H R A 8
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0= 31EA

B3 EAEIR
618A

HBiB6EAEIR
14

#8381 F

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETT
11,750 326,940
2,127 2,445
33,280 157,046
74,494 232,320
638,548 50,633
760,199 769,384

(a) MREREIERAMEEERH
& RUHPHSNHAZRRE
H MEHETEEEHR - 828
RZBMHESERERIRID -

M RRRMFHENERZAHRR
W2 E R A B B R 5 AT

™
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
11,670 317,528
- 683
- 5,096
80 3,633
11,750 326,940
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #& 3k 3R Mz

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

2= B 45 4
(B 5B ATES)

C UARBTTIT)

21. HEWCHR R S I b RE WGk (41)

(a)

(b)

(Cont'd)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which were past due
but not impaired is as follows:

0 to 3 months 0E3f&A

More than 3 months but less
than 6 months

More than 6 months but less
than 1 year

Over 1 year

FRE 1

The above receivables relate to a number of independent
purchasers and tenants. In respect of the trade receivables
arose from sales of properties, the directors of the Company
consider that these receivables would be recovered and no
allowance was made against these past due receivables.
Regarding the rental receivables, rental deposits were held as
collateral over the balances. As such, the directors consider
that no allowance for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances.

Included in other receivables is an amount due from a major
construction contractor of approximately RMB167,597,000
(2010: RMB167,597,000). During the year ended 31
December 2010, a full allowance for impairment was made
for the estimated irrecoverable amount.

(a)

B3 EAELREEA

BB 6 EAEDN1F

(b)

(%)

238 HR B 15 AR (B A FE U BR B BR AR
DATER

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBFT
11,670 42,711

- 683

- 5,096

80 3,633

11,750 52,123

bt RS KA T B E T R
TP o phiHE Y E £ A IR
ME @ EERRZFEEFIAELR
Y lel - S A 3 % 2 8 A e LR R
EHEE - BREKRES - BER
ENERBRBERMEMETE
bt BEERRAEBERZFHRE
TEHRERE -

Hit R RIBETR RERENEZESE
EBEHRIELI AR 167,597,000
7L (20104 : AR % 167,597,000
JC) > BlE2010F 12 A31 HIEF
EBHREF T Ak E € 5B BB E L
AR o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5A.

A

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

EWUIR 35k e

Al B WK (4

(c) Included in loans and advances are amounts of approximately:

(i)

(iif)

RMB80,349,000 made to a business associate in year
2010 that was unsecured, interest-bearing at 110%
of 1 year RMB benchmark lending rate as determined
from time to time by the People’s Bank of China per
annum. Apart from full allowance for impairment on
interest receivable of approximately RMB13,476,000,
no other impairment was provided against the principal
of approximately RMB80,349,000. In March 2011, this
principal sum was fully repaid.

RMB40,000,000 (2010: RMB40,000,000) made to a
business associate that is secured, interest-bearing
at 110% of 1-3 year RMB benchmark lending rate
as determined from time to time by the People’s
Bank of China per annum and interest receivable of
approximately RMB7,164,000 (2010: RMB4,126,000).
The sum is secured by 27 shops in Shenzhen Baorun
Decorative Material Mall. In view of the uncertainty of
the recovery of the outstanding amount, the directors
consider that it is appropriate, to make an allowance for
impairment of approximately RMB20,000,000 on the
amount outstanding in excess the value of the pledged
assets.

RMB50,000,000 made to a business associate in year
2010 that was unsecured and interest-free and the
sum was fully repaid during the year 2011.

(d) The Group's prepaid land costs comprise the following:

(i)

Included in prepaid land costs are amounts
totalled of approximately RMB74,494,000 (2010:
RMB134,506,000) relating to partial payment of land
costs for acquisition of land use rights in the PRC upon
successfully bidding at land auctions conducted by the
PRC government and the related preparatory costs.

Sun Century Group Limited X[t A2 EBE AR A &
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©) HTTFIALHERRBRT - K

sl

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R2010FEBHEALTHE
KR BFRA R 80,349,000
TLAERIT P EARE
TEETRETN —FHA
Ewﬁm§$ﬂ$1m%%

g RBLERFBEHARYE
13,476,000 JL B AE LR E
BEN  BEREASHOAR
% 80,349,000 JT{E H 3 B

o M201143 A » ZA®
EEHEE -
EBBMBEALIHERRER

4 A R # 40,000,000 7T
(20104 : AR ¥ 40,000,000
L) BEER - ZPEA

BERITEETRKRETEN —
E=ZFHPARBERESE

FEE110% 518 - BUF]
B4 A ANRKT7,164,0007T
(20104 : AR™ 4,126,000
L) ZESERARINER
SR 27 B SR o
A UK B 2R A BB 2 TR E
M EERAE HBLHAE
R BBEMEOARE
20,000,0007T & & & A 2
El'\] °

ﬁ/\zomi% % e AL
WMERERBRAOARK
50,000,000 7T & E K &
B BZFTEER 20118
EEE -

(d) AEEFENTHEABELT

(i)

AT LA AR A E 4
AR 74,494,000t (2010
4 : 134,506,000) 53 K A
RID AR IZ R BT i H =
BIEE T F A M S
B> Ak AN DA K AR B &
B -
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) A WA B ik T JEC At JRE WALk (4
(d) (Cont'd) (d) (%)
(i) Included in prepaid land costs in year 2010 was (i) 2010 T ATER LKA
amounts totalled of approximately RMB97,814,000 B HH AR 97,814,000 7T
related to prepayment for land and relocation costs in T35 B B BEDETE T i
respect of potential land development projects in the FEIE B RN T i R IF B
PRC. PR o
22. CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES JE W AR AE
(@) Included in the consideration receivables is an amount of (a) EHRRENEEARGE5,000,000
RMB65,000,000 (2010: RMB85,000,000) arising from the (20104 : A R ¥ 85,000,000
disposal of the Group's subsidiary, Huizhou Yintaida Company J0) * ZRE TR E $E o 65 B
Limited*. This consideration receivable was fully settled in BRrealENmBEREEEXEERA
March 2012. GI EZE@EAM:{EEEMmzis)E!?&
N
(o)  Also included in the consideration receivables is an amount b) EURRETBEBEOARE

23.

of approximately RMB10,603,000, being the balance of
consideration receivable of RMB284,000,000 arising on the
disposal of the Group’s equity interests in Huaxingguang.

Details of the disposal are disclosed in note 19(a) to the

financial statements.

* For identification purposes only

TRADING SECURITIES

*

10,603,0007C * Bl EAREE N E
FEZREMEEZEBEREAR
# 284,000,000 7T 2 84 %8 ° B L
EFBHRU B REMTE19().

12 H 5

b == Ny Y
23. HE#HR

~

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Listed securities, outside BB EES (RAAE)
Hong Kong, at fair value 2,296 3,060
Unlisted fund, at fair value FEmES (RARE) - 1,000
2,296 4,060
The fair values of listed securities are based on quoted market bid ETELFNRARBEDNETSEABHR
prices. BtHE -
The fair value of unlisted fund is established by reference to the FLETESHARBEDNSEESEEA

price quoted by fund administrator.

PT3RE BARHESE ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k=& HT

24. PLEDGED DEPOSITS

24. JRIAFK

(a) Included in pledged deposits are:

(i) Deposits of approximately RMB214,000 (2010:
RMB8,353,000) pledged with certain banks as
guarantee deposits for mortgage loan facilities granted
by the banks to purchasers of the Group's properties.

(ii) Deposits of approximately RMB864,000 (2010:
RMB1,078,000) pledged with banks securing the
Group's bank loans as set out in note 31(d).

(b) The pledged deposits are denominated in RMB. Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

(c) At 31 December 2011, the pledged deposits are subjected to

floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.50% (2010: 0% to
0.36%) per annum.

25. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

25.

(a)

Q

AEEEARFREIE

(i)

(ii)

R e ARK214,0007T
(20104 : A R ¥ 8,353,000
) ZEBREDAETRE
ARTASEMEE HFHE
BEFBREEARERSE
ANFZFIRIT ©

P—EH M FES1(d) BERTT
BERmMERFRITOAAR
#864,0007C(2010F AR
1,078,000 7T ) H97F 3K °

ERFRAAREE - ARKE
HASNEE 78 8 <F R B SN B 2 (R D)
HEE - BERMNEERRTE °

R2011412 A31 8 » £\ Fx%
FEFZENF0%ZE0.50% (20104 :
0% £ 0.36% ) KZENFIEFT B ©

AT R BB

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and cash balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
United States Dollars o
Hong Kong Dollars BT

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

At 31 December 2011, bank balances of approximately
RMB48,515,000 (2010: RMB90,096,000) are subjected to floating
interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.50% (2010: 0% to 0.36%) per
annum.

Sun Century Group Limited X[t A2 EBE AR A &
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REBRT KRR ERABEEEIN T3
B EHE -

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETT ARETT

3,343 30,547
267 60,739
45,439 1,501
49,049 92,787

AR H RN 7838 <7 T B SN E B IR 16
I EIE - BERNEEERRE o

MR201ME12A318 BITEHH A
R " 48,515,000 T (20104 : A R #
90,096,0007T ) & F # & M F0% =
0.50% (20104 : 0% £0.36% ) K);Z E) 7
EEHB e
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/5

SUBSIDIARIES GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

26.

o3 R8s AR A 2 I g 4 1

In August 2011, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Luxegood
Developments Limited (“Luxegood”) for a consideration of
HK$323,170,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB269,308,000).
In December 2011, the Group entered into a supplemental
agreement to adjust the consideration to HK$294,840,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB245,700,000). The transaction
was subsequently completed on 24 February 2012. The assets and
liabilities attributable to Luxegood have been classified as a disposal
group held for sale and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position (see below). Luxegood is included in
the Group's property development business for segment reporting
purposes. The net carrying amount of the relevant assets and
liabilities exceeds the net proceeds of disposal and accordingly, an
impairment loss of RMB8,861,000 has been recognised.

(a) Assets of subsidiaries group classified as held for sale

Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB NEE
Deferred tax assets BRI E =
Inventories FE

Trade and other receivables
AR IE
AR
HRITRIRE AR

Taxation recoverable
Pledged deposits
Bank and cash balances

ERHERIRERE

Impairment loss recognised

(b) Liabilities of subsidiaries group classified as held for sale

Trade and other payables

Receipt in advance TEURBR X
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER

JFE M AR R e LA JRE MR

A R AR e EL AL AT 3K

R2011E8A » AEEF Y B & s -
HEZEEZERARAA(EE]100%
A% #E - R {8 /4323,170,000%8 7T (SR
49 N B #269,308,000 7T ) © #2011 4
128 AEBFT L HFEE  SRESR
#5294,840,000 8 T (FBERH AR
245,700,0007T) ° X B EER2012F 2
A24B %K - BIEEEMNEERBER
WHHARELHEZNEBER  WRH
BREREMBERRRRER(ETX) »
EEERBRESHBENRAREENY
¥EREL - BBREERABENRADF
BAREEMBREFE  TEEER
AR 8,861,000 JT AR (B E518 ©

(a) 2PERAFFELEZHWEEEEE

RMB’000
ARBET T

606

177
399,631
40,220
6,188
1,575
7,572

455,969
(8,861)

447,108
(b) SEAFFELHEZHERERE

RMB’000
AR¥ET T

6,571
145,987
48,850

201,408
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND ACCRUALS

27. WEMHRAK ~ AR PR

2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTIT
Trade payables FERTERER 109,644 108,298
Amounts due to directors B ESERE 440 3,540
Other creditors and accrued charges HEibERRIERER 853,682 266,448
963,766 378,286

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: FERBRRERER D ATANT :
2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
0 - 3 months or on demand 0E3EASIREK 109,644 100,226
More than 3 months but less than 6 months wB3EAELR6EA - 2,748
More than 6 months but less than 1 year tBim 6 EAE D1 F - 592
Over 1 year HBim 1 F - 4,732
109,644 108,298

28. FEWHR K

28. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

BUERREASEEAENEXERS
WEHMHEMSAkEARERENE
AP WERH RN o FTA AR
BN —FREE -

Receipts in advance represented sales proceeds received from
purchasers in connection with the Group's pre-sales of properties
and prepaid rental from tenants of the Group’s investment
properties. All receipts in advance are expected to be settled within
one year.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B =ZFHE9)  UARBTST)

29. RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS 29. FHE KHAbk4
Included in rental and other deposits were approximately HEREMZRESTRIE—EEHR—F
RMB11,768,000 (2010: RMB9,633,000) which are expected to be BEEAEH AR 11,768,000 7T ) 7R IH
settled after more than one year. All other rental and other deposits (20104 : AR#9,633,0007T) ° FTAH
are expected to be settled within one year. HHEEREMIESHTERR —FAERE -
30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 30. A4 ma g
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETF T
Warrants R R 8 14,275

The Warrants, representing the fair value of the right to subscribe
for the Company's ordinary share at the applicable exercise price,
is determined by an independent valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited,
using the Binomial option pricing model.

Each warrant may be exercised from the date of issue up to
2 October 2012 at an initial exercise price, subject to certain
conditions of resent and adjustment, of HK$3.36 per ordinary share
of the Company. On 20 September 2008, the exercise price of
the Warrants has been reset to HK$1.68, being 50% of the initial
exercise price of HK$3.36.

Fair value of the Warrants and key assumptions are as follows:

Fair value at measurement date STEHESNARE
Share prices ]

Exercise price 1TE(E

Expected volatility TE B IR
Expected dividends TEHARR B

Risk-free interest rate 12 [ B | 2

REERE HER T RERTEERBA
REEBROENNAAE) BBIGE
FhEEFERFAERARARAE ZEAH
REBIERE -

BHRBREFANETHHEEZ2012F
10A28 @ BB ITEESRAAR LR
f&3.36 LT EARETEERS
BASIFFTARIR - 200849 208 @ R
REBZTFEEEERA1.68BTL A
ETTHE(E 3.36 T2 50% ©

REEENARERERBRERNOT ¢

2011 2010
HK$0.0001 HK$0.2071
HK$0.177 HK$1.13
HK$1.68 HK$1.68
85% 59%

0% 0%

0.24% 0.563%
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (55 G/ " UARBITST)
31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 31. 47 M H A5 £
2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Bank loans IRITER
— Secured —HiEH 1,112,600 1,030,150
— Unsecured — - 400,000
1,112,600 1,430,150
Other loans HaER
— Secured —HiEH 110,000 95,000
— Unsecured — I 90,357 410,280
200,357 505,280
1,312,957 1,935,430

(a)  The bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows: (

Bank and other loans
on demand or within one year

In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive
After the five years

Less: Amount due from
settlement with 12
months (shown under
current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement
after 12 months

110 Sun Century Group Limited A5 t42 =B H R A 8
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) EEENRITREMERNT

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
RITREME R

REREF—FREE 865,957 823,230
F_F 447,000 621,600
E-ZRF(EFERTF) - 185,000
AF%E - 305,600
447,000 1,112,200
1,312,957 1,935,430

B EY12 (8 A A E R EIER

A G AERBAERE)

(865,957) (823,230)

FEUR 12 18 A 18 4= B R B HiF 08
447,000 1,112,200
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5HHTES) + UAREITTIR)

31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D) 31. SRAT M H AT (4)
(b)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other (b) AEEBRITREMEENREETD
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: ARBI| &M EHE -
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Hong Kong Dollars ABTT 77,357 =
RMB AR 1,235,600 1,655,150
United States Dollars 7T - 280,280
1,312,957 1,935,430
(c)  The following table details the interest rate profile of the (c) TERHFMASHEBITIREMEER
Group's bank and other borrowings at the reporting date: s B ERFIEARR,
2011 2010
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRFI= YIRS
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTT
Fixed rate borrowings: BEEFEREE
Bank and other loans PITREME R 2.00-30.00 627,957  5.84-20.00 209,472
Variable rate borrowings: FEREEE
Bank and other loans PITREME R 6.318-8.00 672,000 5.13-845 1,525,150
Interest-free borrowings: REEBE: N/A 13,000 N/A 200,808
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5EF

31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

h - YA EBETTIT)

31. SRAT S At AR B (A7)

(d) At 31 December 2011, the Group's asset pledged as security
for the Group's bank and other borrowing are as follows:

Investment properties KEYE
Inventories 7E

Prepaid land cost TEf AR
Pledged deposits HEIRFR

At 31 December 2011, included in bank and other
borrowings are certain loans amounted to approximately
RMB795,600,000 (2010: RMB1,258,622,000) guaranteed
by a director of the Company, Mr. ZENG Yunshu and/or
ex-director of the Company, Mr. ZENG Sheng.

At 31 December 2011, included in bank and other
borrowings are certain loans amounted to approximately
RMB120,000,000 (2010: RMB150,000,000) secured by
certain certificates of land use rights of lands owned by a
disposed subsidiary of the Group.

Sun Century Group Limited A5 t42 =B H R A 8
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(d)

MN2011512 8310 - AXREEER
TREMEEmMERNAEREE
R

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETT

780,000 1,614,100
654,323 682,687
74,494 =
864 1,078
1,509,681 2,297,865

MR2011E12A8318 R#TEKE
MEERERAAR —RESEE
BAER, AR —ZRITES
CHBEEEROETERNDARE
795,600,000 7T (2010 & = A R #
1,258,622,0007T) °

M2011F12A318 BTk H
thEEREAAEEE HEWNBEA
AIMEB RS T L (F A EE R
®E T E ML AR 120,000,000
7L (20104 : A K ¥ 150,000,000
JT) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (f+55F

DEFERRED TAX

32. &

UAE

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the

ﬁé%iéﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁi’%mﬁﬁﬂﬁ’ﬂéﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements E)/ BEIDREANESHOT :
during the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances  Temporary Temporary
inexcess  differences Fair valug Total differences  Capitalisation
Revaluation of ofrelted arisingfrom  adjustmenton  deferedtax arisingfrom  of interest  Total deferred
investment ~ depreciation  deferredrent  inventories liabilities LAT expenses tax assets
poperties  BHEEAE  REELES FEH BERE  RRfEid B a0
BRENE NRERRE  MERER  ONERR SEEE EERNERER HExH BESE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR
At 1 January 2010 R2010E1A 219512 8049 4013 - 231,634 (24573) (26,374) (49,947)
Effectof changes n tax rate EEER :ﬂ\fﬁﬁﬁ
on opening deferred tax HEERRE
halances to profitand loss e - - - - - - (1423 149
Acquistion of subsidiaries KEHBAR - - 81,09 81,09
Charge/(Credt) to rofitand loss B/ GEA) B 52,105 4484 503 - 57,09 2080 9743 30,569
Disposal of subsidaries HEHBAT - - - (81,096) (81,06 13 7433 7568
At 31 December 2010 20108123318 men 12,533 4576 - 288,126 (3612) (9,621) (13.233)
Charge/(Credt) to rofitand loss e/ GEA) (188,175 2116 (4576) - [190,635) (2,889) 4905 2017
Disposal of subsidaries HEHBAT - - - - - 2067 I 2115
Transfer to subsidaries group EYEAERRE
Classfied as held for sale HEZNESE - - - - - - 7 17
At 31 December 2011 RO1E127318 83,442 14,649 - - 98,091 4.433) (4.491) 8,924)

At 31 December 2011, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB59,107,000 (2010: RMB57,960,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMB59,107,000
(2010: RMB57,960,000) will expire after five years from the year of

assessment they relate to.

R2011F12A318 ' A&BEEHAHH

FRIEEE 4 AR 59,107,000t (2010

&£ . AR# 57,960,000 7T) A] KK

o

R B A A AT SRR -
RIEEHIREFE

I 48

FEARFER AR R

R EE A R#59,107,0007T (20104 = A
R# 57,960,000 7T) #% & FT8 R RF R EE
RAFEREM e
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3 R Mz

92 N=1
(PRF3H

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.95

per ordinary share to settle an upfront fee of approximately
HK$76,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB66,886,000) in
relation to credit note issued by the Company. The premium on issue

of shares amounted to approximately RMB66,182,000 was credited

to the Company’s share premium account. The new shares rank pari

passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

Sun Century Group Limited A5 t42 =B H R A 8
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A
Number of shares Share capital
RHEE i
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s T ThL
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01each BREE0 AT EER 30,000,000,000 30,000,000,000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: ER{TRER :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01each BREGV ATHEBR
At 1 January 2010 R20101518 1,230,671,384  1,040,250,000 12,307 10,403
fa) - 80,000,000 - 800
b) - 25,000,000 - 250
(c) - 19,000,000 - 190
(d) - 66,421,384 - 664
At 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011 R2010FER 201112831 8 1,230,671,384  1,230,671,384 12,307 12,307
2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT
RMB equivalent ARKEZRS 11,971 11,971
Notes: BsE -
(a) On 11 January 2010, the Company issued and allotted 80,000,000 (a) R2010F1 8118 &R RQ A LA %17

B &8k & @ AR0.95% T 8 17 K g %
80,000,000 fi% & fX I (£ 0.01 8 7T &)
B UENEREARRBITHEESR
i E £ B ATEAE F %9 76,000,000 7T
(FHER# AR ¥ 66,886,0007T) ° 4T
&5 #93% B 4 A R ¥ 66,182,000 7T E 5T
AERRARBORG BB - IRHEFRE
FEERARRERNDZERZEF -



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5 A,

33. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT’D)

et

A =]
: 7

33. A (%)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(b) On 11 January 2010, the Company issued and allotted 25,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.95 per
ordinary share to an independent third party for settlement of an
advance received of approximately RMB20,835,000. The premium
on issue of shares amounted to approximately RMB20,615,000
was credited to the Company’s share premium account. The new
shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the

Company.

(c) On 9 February 2010, 19,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
were issued and allotted in relation to exercised share options
pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company at the
exercise price of HK$0.60 per share for a total cash consideration
of approximately HK$11,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB10,005,000) of which approximately HK$190,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB167,000) was credited to share capital and the
balance of approximately HK$11,210,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB9,838,000) was credited to share premium account. The new
shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the
Company. Approximately RMB14,754,000 was transferred from

capital reserve to share premium account.

(d) On 31 March 2010, the Company issued and allotted 66,421,384
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$1.29 each in
lieu of cash for special dividend pursuant to the scrip dividend circular
dated 3 March 2010. The new shares rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares of the Company.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

fiaE - ()

(b)  M2010F1 A 118 » AREAEITES
AR EA%0.95 BTl — BB FE =77 5
77 Rt % 25,000,000k B R E{E0.018
TR EBE  NENBRBROARKE
20,835,000 7T ° ETTAMD AR ENAR
# 20,615,000 7LE st AR RIA AR 17 )4
BiR - RO EME T AERRFRE
W in = A BSHER o

(c)  H2010%F2A9A ' A7 19,000,000
A% 38 AR B AR AR AN A R SR AR AT EILATT
BB AR 0.60 AT TERARME M T A%
TRECE - 43R & KB R 11,400,000
BT (FEERK AR 10,005,0007T)
H B #190,0008 T(BHERH AR
% 167,000 ) B &t AR A - MR EE
#4911,210,0008 T (HHEZE R H AR K
9,838,000 7T) B & AR R M A (555 B
B - TR EME T EEAARBEER
MNERRZER - K AR 14,754,000
TEHREAREESREERMRER -

(d  #R201053A318 * RARIUETES
i%1.29%8 T 21T R BL 3 66,421,384 1k &
AREE 0.01 B LB - RIBERHA
20104 3 A 3 A B AR S5t &3 1K
BREBIRENRE - MRMHEMEHE
BARRRERGZERZER -

EREE
AEEEREANEZABERRELRE

BORELER N EBEDEBE
B FERBIREREADE o
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONT’D)

JBA (4)

Capital management (cont’d)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the net
debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt as
total debt (which includes trade and other payables, and accruals;
derivative financial liabilities and bank and other borrowings), less

BEXREE ()

AEEESDLERHHEERRBETR

.ﬂ‘&aiﬁ C AR SRR E R E ST A
HEIZLE’J?I—J BB KRR I HE A AR
S SR 0 BE R AR BE 2 RV EAS T - 30

R AR B IR R R B 3 AN ZRAE (R 5

B’ o
o

AEEAFREH RS R SEEER
HERRE - RUAEEKFEERE
REaE(EBFENRAR MR
ARFEREM  TEERBERRTR

HMER)REERFRRBITRRES
BER

pledged deposits; and bank and cash balances.

2011 FR - AEBARALE 2010 FF
BAAE . HFaEHEELXNTAMS
HH - RTHFRABZLE - KEE
FERBENTRENRSSE - BT
Mt REEATRE SEHNE
BREXHEEENRDALE -

During 2011, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2010 was to maintain the net debt-to-equity ratio in line with market
expectations. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or
sell assets to reduce debt.

REER - FEEWRERLENT :

The net debt-to-equity ratio at the reporting date is as follows:

2011 2010

Note RMB’'000 RMB’000

BiaE ARMFT ARETIT

Trade and other payables, and accruals FERTARSR - HAFERR

KIERER 27 963,766 378,286

Derivative financial liabilities MTESRAE 30 8 14,275
Bank and other borrowings SFRITREMEE 31 1,312,957 1,935,430
Total debt wafE 2,276,731 2,327,991
Less: Pledged deposits B EIERTER 24 (1,078) (9,431)
Less: Bank and cash balances B IRTT RIR S AR 25 (49,049) (92,787)
Net debt FEE 2,226,604 2,225,773
Total equity iR 657,110 1,776,226
Net debt-to-equity ratio FEEHERIEE 338% 125%

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group W—INEARTRE  REFAEER
to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public R FTH) Lt - ARBEEREED
float of at least 25% of the shares. 25% BRD A BIFRE ©
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HAREETTIT)

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 34. ARNE BB B AR OLFR

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Property, plant and equipment Y% -« BEREME - 29
Investments in subsidiaries RSB A R RIEE 1,217,782 1,026,556
Loans and advance = EONET - 19,679
Prepayments and deposits A B RIRS 592,267 1,040
Bank balances and cash RITRIBSER 45,460 5,676
Other payables and accruals HAibEZIE R TERE R (84,816) (5,584)
Amount due to subsidiaries FERH B A RIFIE (1,007,007) (244,480)
Current tax liabilities AEAFRIE A E (4,333) (4,333)
Derivatives financial liabilities PTEERBE (8) (14,275)
Borrowings B8 (77,357) (79,473)
NET ASSTS EEFE 681,988 704,835
Share capital &N 11,971 11,971
Reserves G 670,017 692,864
TOTAL EQUILTY FERAAEE 681,988 704,835

35. RESERVES 35. fft
(a) Group (a) A&&EE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements AEEREREZINSEREE

therein are presented in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

2HERRIEGAEREHRANZ

5] o
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35. REservEs (CoNT’D) fiti 5 (7))
(b) Company (b) ZAAQF
Retained
profits/
(Accumulated
Share Merger Capital losses)
premium reserve reserve  fRERR]/ Total
RIDEE ElE Xkt (ZEFR) b
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARETT  AR®TR AR%Tr AR%Tr ARBTx
At 1 January 2010 R201051 418 579,466 (752) 32,455 218,819 829,988
Loss for the year AERER - - (154,966) (154,966)
Issue of shares BIRG 33(a) 66,182 = = - 66,182
33(b) 20,615 - - - 20,615
33(c) 24,592 = (14,754) 9,838
Issue of script dividends shares FMRR SR 15, 33(d) 74,749 - - (75,333) (584)
Special dividend paid in cash BEXAERIRE 15 - - - (78,209) (78,209)
Share options cancelled B RRRE 36(c) - - (7 7 =
At 31 December 2010 12010 12A318 765,604 (752) 17,6% (89,682) 692,864
Loss for the year rEEER - - - 22.847) 22,847)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12831H 765,604 (752) 17,694 (112,529) 670,017
(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) RENHEERE®
(i) Share premium (i) 718

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to

pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course

of business.
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X| i inbi Yuan u wise indi (BB BATHES) - AN B EITTHR)
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Bx5BA155) + XA BT HIN

35. REservEs (CoNT’D)

35. flifh (4)

36.

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiary acquired
over the nominal value of the shares used by the
Company exchange therefore.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after tax of the Group's
PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 3(q) to the
financial statements.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

(c) fEGHMEERER(E)
(i) EUERE

& O 7Y 48 PTUR R 9 B 58
REIRRMD N EEEARR R R
SRR D EEZ R E
e

(i) VA

EERBE RO - XRIE
HEERERIOER B RS
1) B B /8 R B B4R e
e o

(iv) B

EXFHRBEARBMKH
BT R A B IR SR A =t
HEWARE HREMB
HARMFES(q) PR AEE
VAR £ 75 25 7 B0 58 3R M BR 44
HE SR AER o

36. DIMESR 45 5 T DA B AR 2 FE B 1)

ik

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 31 January 2007
whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite eligible participants such as employees and
consultants of the Group, including directors of any company in
the Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company. These options
generally vest after six months to one year from the date of grant
and are exercisable within a period of five to ten years. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company at a predetermined exercise price plus a consideration of

HK$10 per option holder.

AR 2007 F 1 A 31 BEM—ERRK
AT BUARRESERENRNE
BEASENEERERSEAERSH
H(BEASEETEAARNES)R
BARARKRG ZERBRE—HBEFEH
B RBANEAZE—FREE  RARN
RAETFEHBEARITE - BREFEARE
M10BTERRE  SHRKRER TF
BAER - AIRBETEERE R
NAEBR -
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONT’D) 36. DARE % 45 5 S DA AR 4 FE 1 Y
Ak (48)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed (a) FREEHBOERIREGNT -
during the year are as follows, whereby all options are BB R REG URDETEY
settled by physical delivery of shares: AT :

Number of Contractual Exercise
options Vesting conditions life of options price
AREHE FEGE RRESHEE  OHFE
Options granted to directors RTEEH0AMRE :
- on 15 May 2007 —~1 2007458158 2,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 1-years HK$1.84
miR it B Bt (A A 106 184387
Options granted to employees & FIEE KFRMRE :
- on 15 May 2007 —1 2007458158 12,935,000 Six months from the date of grant 1-years HK$1.84
miRit B Bt (A A 105 184387
- on 10 October 2007 —1R20074€10A 108 1,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 1-years HK$2.99
miR it B B (A A 106 29987
Options granted to third parties 55 = 5 K)-RME :
- on 15 May 2007 —1 2007458158 13,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 1-years HK$1.84
miRit B B (A A 106 184387
- on 13 February 2008 —~12008%2A 138 8,000,000 Six months from the date of grant 1-years HK$1.70
miR it B B (A A 106 1705871
36,935,000

(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the (b)  HAIRE B HA R &R R R ITERY

reporting date: R FERVHABR -
Exercise period Exercise price 2011 2010
1TEH TEE
15 November 2007 to 14 May 2017 HK$1.84 27,935,000 27,935,000
200711 A16HZE20174F5814H 1.84787C
10 April 2008 to 9 October 2017 HK$2.99 1,000,000 1,000,000
2008F 4 A10H=2017F10A9H 2.997% T
13 August 2008 to 12 August 2018 HK$1.70 8,000,000 8,000,000
200848 A13H=2018F8 A 12H 1.70747T

36,935,000 36,935,000
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36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONT’D)

36. DIMEZR

(BR5H,  UAEBTTS

& % B DA B A 7 B 1Y

'fil‘d/\ (%)

The number and weighted average exercised prices of
share options are as follows:

(c)

RREBE REMETITEREN
T

2011 2010

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options

g IETH
B  RREHE 1B RREHA
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Outstanding at beginning of year FMEARTE HK$1,84 36,935 HK$1.42 55,951
Exercised during the year FNT6E N/A - HK$0.60 (19,000)
Cancelled during the year FRFEEH N/A - HK$1.84 (16)
Outstanding at end of year FEREARTE HK$1,84 36,935 HK$1.84 36,935
Exercise at end of year FERATAE HK$1,84 36,935 HK$1,84 36,935

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 19,000,000
share options granted on 31 January 2007 were exercised.
Approximately RMB14,754,000 was transferred from capital
reserve to share premium accounts.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 16,000 share
options granted on 15 May 2007 were cancelled. Accordingly,
the fair value on grant date of the share options so cancelled
of approximately RMB7,000 was transferred from the capital
reserve to retained profits.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2011 had exercise
prices of HK$1.70, HK$1.84 or HK$2.99 and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 5.65 years.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2010 had exercise
prices of HK$1.70, HK$1.84 or HK$2.99 and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 6.65 years.

HE2010F12 A31HLEFE '
200741 A31H#EH /919,000,000
MRBREECETE HARK
14,754,000 cE HE RN E BB EE
B4 % (B Bk o

H E2010F 128318 EFE -
200745 A 156 A #% 1 #9 16,000
DRBEE FH - Bt - BEFHR
RERE L BHHNARBHNARE
7,000 T E HERNEEERZRE
w A e

2011412 A31 B i ARITERK
FEMTTEBA1.7087T  1.848 T
52,9987 - MMBFEHAKRTEL
FHI5 65 4F ©

20104812 A 31 B ARTTEREK
EMTTEBA1.7087T ~ 1.848 T
5299487 - MMBFEHABRTEL
FHIA6.654F ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (KR53 EF

36. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (CONT’D)

b UA B TTIR)

36. DARERS %5 5 S DA A 7 BERRE Y
ik (A8

(d)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on either the Black-
Scholes pricing model or the binomial lattice model. The
contractual life and expectations of early exercise of the share

option were used as inputs into relevant models.

Fair value of share options and assumptions are as follows:

Fair value at measurement date

Share price

Exercise price

Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility
used in the models)

Option life (expressed as weighted
average life used in the models)

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate (based on
Exchange Fund Notes)

Valuation model used

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There was
no market conditions associated with the share option grants.

R ERHNAAE

&

i3

R (XS
B R A
FIRBET)

AREF (RSB R
REMETSFERT)

LIS

ERBANE (ANE
EEREHE)

RAR AR
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(d) FRRENDABEREBR

BABRELN -

15 May
2007
200765A 158

HK$0.47
HK$1.84
HK$1.84

48.9%

3.25 years
34%

4.2%
Black-Scholes

AR

10 October
2007
2007104108

HK$0,64
HK$2.93
HK$2.99

61.1%

10 years
1.21%

4.3%
Binominal

RERER BRI -
I S R TR IR A5 PO H H BB
BEFf & - WERERREMEE
AT 45 6k 1F

VAT T 58 B pE 4 B P R BRUIR T ) 22
RETSEARTRRENAAE
FtE - IR TREENA A B
TR N — TR E Ak
“IEAHERAGE - BRBRENE
MERIERRPTERIERSEIE

SBREAI A ER BRI T -

13 February
2008
200842 A 130

HK$0.54
HK$1.61
HK$1.70

56.2%

10 years

2.7%
Binominal

TEHR 1R Th IR IR I SR R (AR 1R 7R
A i 6 pNAE A9 R T F HIRTE) -

YRR IR AR A B E K BRERTE
HREE B ) RO NE ©
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37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

UAE

{}IL EH E Kﬁ rﬂf

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 23 April 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
with a vendor, Shenzhen Huifenglian Investment Company
Limited* (“SZ Huifenglian”) to acquire 100% of the issued
share capital of Shenzhen Hong Long Real Estate Company
Limited* (“SZ HL Real Estate”) since SZ Huifenglian and SZ
HL Real Estate failed to repay to the Group of approximately
RMB2,001,000 and RMB214,850,000 respectively and was
in difficulty to raise funds for their property development
project. The consideration of approximately RMB2,001,000
was satisfied by the offset against the same amount due by
SZ Huifenglian. SZ HL Real Estate is an investment holding
company, which together with its 52% subsidiaries, Huizhou
Dayawan Yonghao Company Limited* (“HZ Dayawan
Yonghao") and Huizhou Hongye Investment Development
Company Limited* (“HZ Hongye") (collectively referred to
as “SZ HL Real Estate Group”) are principally engaged in
property development.

The acquisition was completed on 23 April 2010. The Group
recognised a gain on bargain purchase of approximately
RMB123,979,000 in relation to this business combination.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the gain
on bargain purchase was resulted from a forced sale.

The directors consider that this acquisition will allow the
Group to increase substantially its land reserves and have an

additional and steady income source in the coming years.

* For identification only

(a)

WEEKIB AT

201054 A238 © ARAEIT
ELBEEERAR(NRIEZ
g RFINMEREXERAE
([BEEZ])HRRGEEELASE
B4 AR 2,001,000 7T K% A R
214,850,000 7t B 8 A A E W35
%XIEE%$E$ CAEEEES

FRIELE T — B - UK
%%[‘é%%ﬂ’\ﬂoo% BEITRA - R
B# AR 2,001,000 7T I3 LA £
FRIELE EMSEN AT -
BESERKERERAR - ERE
B 52 % #Ew= BT B A N KR
EXRBEABR AR ([BMATE
KED RBMNEEREREBRA
AI(TEMERED (REEEEEE
B XZEREMEEREER -

ZUW B ETEN2010F4 23 H %
Ko REBERILERE S HHERE
fﬁﬁ%,\uﬂz # AN R #123,979,000

AAESERR  HEBER
éﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@( g
EERA mWBERRERAEE

RURIE N30 R - WA ARIREF
BEARIMRERARIR

* ELe% ]
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b KABRBTST)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (KR53 EF

37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 37. HFAEBERERNF
(Cont’D) (%)
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Cont’d) (a) WEBHEAR (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of SZ HL PR EIE B X KB A ERI B E
Real Estate Group acquired as at the date of acquisition is as FaERKEERNAREDT ¢
follows:
RMB'000
ARETT
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 2,340
Other assets Hh&E 608
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 2,500
Trading securities BEZES 1,000
Inventories FE 1,241,621
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE « HRE R E fth FEUR
other receivables 34,887
Pledged deposits HEIPTF 10,496
Bank and cash balances RITRIA S R 3,220
Trade and other payables, and accruals ~ JEfFERFK - HMEMN R LIERER (315,094)
Amounts due to the Group FERT AN B RIE (259,936)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER (400,000)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIERE (81,096)
Net assets BEFE 240,546
Non-controlling interests eI R i (114,566)
Gain on bargain purchase in respect XBEHNBEERE RS
of business combination (123,979)
2,001
Satisfied by LATRB AR -
Consideration offsetting against HSH AN & B PR OGR IR YR (B
the Group's receivable 2,001
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEERBRESRAFE :
Cash and cash equivalents acquired AR RIREEEY 3,220
The non-controlling interest recognised at the acquisition U S B EARER A JE T AR 25 T A
date was measured by the non-controlling shareholders’ FE 122 AR AR 225 97 B 151 B 4 2R K 25
proportionate share of the net fair value of the identifiable KERBMNRFEAHAEERBE
assets and liabilities of HZ Dayawan Yonghao and HZ Hongye RUEE A A R R ER 2 ©

at the acquisition date.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/55 Ar#55)

37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(ConT’D)

(%3 YA RHTIIF)

37. &5 A BLAn R Ak
(#)

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Cont’d)

SZ HL Real Estate Group's contribution of turnover and
loss to the Group since the date of acquisition and up to 31
December 2010 are as follows:

Turnover contribution EXEBER
Loss contribution EEER

The contribution of turnover and loss to the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010 as if the acquisition had been
completed on 1 January 2010 are as follows:

Turnover contribution EXEBER
Loss contribution EEER

The above proforma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of the turnover and
results of operations that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2010, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

On 10 November 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of its entire 52% equity interest in HZ Dayawan
Yonghao and HZ Hongye. The directors consider that
thedisposal represented a good opportunity for the Group
to realise it investments in HZ Dayawan Yonghao and HZ
Hongye and to relocate its resources to other investments
which may generate higher returns to the Group.

(a) WEBHELR (E)

EEEXEEESWEBRHRZE2010
F12A31 BIEHASEEER M E %
HREBAT

RMB’'000
ARBTT

4,033

BRRWEEEEMR 201061 A1 H
A REIE 2010512 A31 81k
FEHAEETRMNEEENOT ¢

RMB’'000
ARBTT

6,461

EitEEERHEHRBIA - RUKRT
B WEEIRRX201061 A1 H
RN E S BV

2010411 8108 » AEEE]Z
—IEREEHER BN KEEKE R
HMEEH D EE2% I - EER
B HETHAASEIRERE -
A B0 R BN K g ok = RN =
EHRE WHARERERALE
E SR E = B RO EAIRE o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S5 &H#EI + LU RETIT)

37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 37. (F B BT BRI
(Cont’D) (%)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEMHBLF
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group R2011F12 831 HLIEFE &%
disposed of certain subsidiaries. Net assets of the BHEETHBAR - HEMHBA
subsidiaries being disposed of at the date of disposal were as AR L EREMEEFENT ¢
follows:
Shenzhen Hong
Long Weiye Shenzhen Dongguan Meizhou Shenzhen Shenzhen Shenzhen
Property Yinghua  Honghua Industrial Hong Long Hong Long Real ~ Kong Long Property  Yiurui Investment
Development Development Investment ShiYe  Estate Company Management Development
Company Limited* ~ Company Limited*  Company Limited* Company Limited* Limited* ~ Company Limited*  Company Limited*
MimeERE  RITAEER ZOEEER  Powermore Limited ez R HimEe Rilnts Total
EHEERAR 3RERAA RERRAA HERRAR BRAF EXRRAA UREROR  RERRARLA Ak
RMB'000 RMB1000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000

NEETT ARETL NRETT NEBTT ARBTTR NREFT ARETR NRBTTL NRETT

Property,plantand equipment 1% * B RiklE - - - L) 18 - ® - 19
Avalatleforsalefnancel assets IEEHESBEE = - - - - 250 - - 250
Deferred tax assets Eitivaaz - - - 211 - - - - 2115
Inventories 53 = = = 8832 1922 8533 - 5248 94,53
Trade andother receivables ~ EMEERRAMENG 206% 93959 19,924 30542 3 - il 9% 169,869
Trading securtes EEEs - - = = = 1000 = - 100
Amount dug from the Group M EEE 5018 18026 36,963 128436 1,081 - 2939
Curtent tax assets HEfERE - - - - 4813 - - - 483
Pledged deposits vl - - - 5,00 13 - - - 5,163
Bank and cash balances FkRess 3 6 4 12098 109 [18) 1529 2 13919
Trade and other payables, and ~ EEEST  ZfEkE

accruals RERER (600) (65,860} (15,108) [32,896) (2,606} (18,0001 2,003) 1,48) (138318
Recapts nadvances BliER - - - [24811) (108 = = - (25,834
AmoutsduetotheGroup  EfIAZEEE (176) 4149 - (38,163) - - (643) (5,000 (48,030)
Bankandotherborowings ~ EIREREE - - - (20000 - - - - (20000
Curent tax iabilies HEFERRE - - - (9600 - (28139 - - 37738
Net assets BESE 19925 23971 9884 51,39 43960 94316 154 - 1359
Norcontroling nterest HehiEa - - (989) - - - - - (989)
The Group balance disposed  HEAEELE 178 4148 (5018) (9,863) (36,963) (128436) (508) 5000 (171,364
Ganflosslondisposalof ~ HEHEANRIER)

subsidiaries 699 108) 3 25089 0 53120 1074 1,000 81873
Total consideraton - satisfied ~ £RE-HAARN

by cash 20800 28000 4,000 66592 8,000 19,000 120 6,000 153112
Netcashinfowarisng fom ~ HEEEABREFAFE

disposal:
Cashconsiderationreceved — EMHERE 20800 28,000 4000 66,592 8000 19,000 0 6,000 183112
Cashandeashequivaent — FiEHBERESSEN

(disposed of K] ] 47 12238 (109 15 [1529) 2 [13919)

20797 2799 3953 54,354 7891 19,015 809) 5998 139,193
*  For identification purpose only {245
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(ConT’D)

(B =ZFHE9)  UARBTST)

37, B3 Bl A A M

(%)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
disposed of its entire 52% equity interest in HZ Dayawan
Yonghao and HZ Hongye, 82% equity interest in Huizhou
Yintaida Company Limited* and 100% equity interest in Hong
Long Xingye Investment Company Limited*. Net assets
of the above subsidiaries being disposed of at the date of

(b)

disposal were as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

W - R RaRT

Other assets HihEE

Deferred tax assets RAEFIIE & B
Inventories FE

Trade and other receivables JFEE LA B 0 e L A P LKL R
Amount due from the Group FEMAN & B R0E
Current tax assets MENTIE A E

Pledged deposits HEHPTF

Bank and cash balances
Trade and other payables, and accruals

RITRIRE AR
FERRRR ~ AR R R TR B

Receipts in advance TEUBR R

Amount due to the Group FERT AN BRIE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER
Deferred tax liabilities BERIERE

Net assets BEFE
Non-controlling interests eI R i e
Waiver of debts RRE

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHTB A Al

Total consideration — satisfied by cash

BRE-REXN

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEMNRSRAFRE
Cash consideration received BUFEESKE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of ~ FrHEHIRE MIE S EEY

HEME QT (&)

REZE2010F 12 A31 HIEFE -
AEBMEEREMAREEKE KB
MEER2E62% BHE - REMNH
IRTETEER R AIAI82 % AAE &
ORI T IEE B E G R A RN
100% AR #E o &/ Lin kB2 R
RHEE BB EEFENT -

RMB’'000
ARBTT

2,471
448
7,568
1,713,693
192,598
18,000
1,912
27,212
27,500
(470,462)
(108,037)
(289,052)
(811,000)
(81,096)

231,755
(111,373)
289,052
200,801

610,235

456,308
(27,500)

428,808
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37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(ConT’D)

C UARBTTITR)

37. 6 Bl i B AR R

(#)

(c)

Major non-cash transactions

Included in other payables and accruals are amounts of
approximately RMB20,835,000 and RMB66,886,000
representing a short-term advance and an accrued upfront
fee in relation to credit note issued by the Company during
the year 2010, respectively, which have been settled by the
issuance of 105,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
an issue price of HK$0.95 per ordinary shares.

During the year 2010, credit note of approximately
RMB200,808,000 was settled directly by another loan raised
with the same principal amount.

Included in additions to investment properties during the year
2010 is an amount of approximately RMB27,776,000 which
was transferred from inventories.

During the year 2010, an advance from a third party of
approximately RMB30,000,000 included in trade and
other payables, and accruals at 31 December 2009 were
transferred to receipts in advance for purchase of certain
completed properties of the Group.

During the year 2010, the deposit paid of approximately
RMB32,600,000 in prior year was transferred to available-
forsale financial assets.

Details of scrip dividend in lieu of cash are set out in note 33(d)
to the financial statements.

Sun Century Group Limited &5 t42 =B HR A 8
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(c)

TERFRERS

R2010F & + 5T AE B K
TEiRE A4 AR 20,835,0007T
& A R# 66,886,000t A6 5
BAREBARRRTEEZEN
ATEAE A - WA TE AR L @A
0.95 % 0% 17 4 A 7] 105,000,000
AR LB AR A 5 AT o

R2010FE ' EEEBEHARK
200,808,000 LY ESENEFEA
SEMEREELEN -

FAREMRBNERBRETE
MK AR ¥ 27,776,000 7T

201045 &+ — % 720094 12
A31BEFAREMRR - K ERR
REREANE=TBRHOARE
30,000,000 T2 & # = AREE A
SEETERITYENTERIER ©

R2010FE  F—FEEfES
#) AR #32,600,0007TE EEEET]
HEESHEE -

PA B AR BRE IS 8 B 15 R MY A
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Er=5F

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

UAE

38. ERARAfE

(a)

At 31 December 2011, the Group provided guarantees
to certain banks in respect of mortgage facilities granted
in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
purchasers of the Group's properties as follows:

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage B HERIZBREHE
MR TIRAIER

facilities granted to purchasers

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there are any
defaults on the mortgages, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulting purchasers to
banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal title
and possession of the related properties. The guarantees
shall be released in accordance with the terms of the
guarantee contracts, such as:

(i) upon the issue of the relevant purchaser's property
ownership certificate and in the custody of the bank; or

(ii) up to a maximum of two years after the full repayment
of mortgage loan by the relevant purchaser.

At 31 December 2011, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantees.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

R2011E12A31 8 AEERE
BAAEEYEE HF L WIRBER
Mm% AR B EEE - M5 TR
TIREERAT ¢

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AREFT
30,462 332,810

RIBERZ G MIZBHIRED
R AEBEARBEEEENES
BRIBITZ AEERIBATERE
SRS REIR - AREZREEE
ERBMENEAERENTERE
BRAERBRBEERS QERKE
B g

() HEESTNFEEmMBEREERE
MERRBITRE + X

(i) FEHEESBHREEZRBER
BREME ©

MN2011412 8310 EER AN
EEFELMERMAERENEKS
TR e

BRARRNEHEBEMZAREBELD
BR - I EA AR A B 7% R A

27
o ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br5 A,

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

38. AR (B)

(b)

At 31 December 2011, the Group provided guarantees
to certain banks and financial institutions to the extent of
RMB1,131,000,000 (2010: RMB1,131,000,000) in respect
of loan facilities granted to certain disposed subsidiaries.
The maximum liability of the Group, at 31 December 2011,
under the guarantees was the total facilities utilised by the
disposed subsidiaries as at the same date which amounted
to approximately RMB756,000,000. The guarantees shall
be released, in accordance with the terms of the guarantee
contracts, up to a maximum of two years after the full
repayment of the loans.

At 31 December 2011, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantees since the loan facilities were also
secured by certain certificates of land use rights of lands
owned by the disposed subsidiaries and 100% equity interest
of the disposed subsidiaries.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to a purchase agreement of land use right and a
supplement agreement both dated 31 January 2008, if the
Group cannot complete the underlying property development
project at Chaohu City, Anhui Province, the PRC (“Chaohu
Project”) on or before 31 December 2010, the vendor shall
charge the Group a daily penalty of 0.1% on the land premium
amount. At 31 December 2011, the Group experienced a
delay in the construction progress and would not be able to
meet the contractual construction completion date. However,
up to the date of the approval of the financial statements,
the Group has not received any enforcement notice from the
vendor in relation to the above. Based on past experience,
the Directors are of the opinion that the first phase of Chaohu
Project shall be completed in 2012 and the Group will not be
subject to any penalties relating to the delay in the contractual
construction completion date. Hence, no provision has been
made in the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2011, the Group has been in litigation
in relation to various claims totalled approximately
RMB14,651,000. Based on the legal advice obtained,
the directors of the Company believe that the Group has
reasonable good chances of successfully defending those
claims. Hence no provision has been made in the financial
statements.
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R2011412 8318 » AEEHK
FTETEHEMNHRBARNERH
BRE TRITR S BEEREER
# A R #1,131,000,000 7t (2010
£ AR #1,131,000,0007T ) °
AEE2011F12 A31 BRERT
MEEAE A% HEWBAR
RRABEANREBREHARE
756,000,000 7T ° Z &R GBI &
RAENNGEH - IEHEBIRIBER
BIRZME RN ©

R2011412 A31H - AEBER
MAZE HEWB AR MEENE
timﬁ%%maﬁﬁeﬁ%mm

AR EPARIE(EIRIR - ERR
ﬁ$%llt LR i E ER R E A
BeEg K o
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o ©
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LEASE COMMITMENTS

LS

T

At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years

RFEAE

At 31 December 2011 the total future minimum sublease payments
expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases amounted
to approximately RMB Nil (2010: RMB37,316,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for its offices, staff quarters and sub-leased properties. Leases are
typically negotiated for periods from two to fifteen years and do not
include contingent rentals.

During the year, approximately RMB5,846,000 (2010: RMB7,531,000)
was recognised in profit or loss as rental expenses in respect of sub-
leased properties.

FE-_EEFERF(EERF)

R2011412 A318 » TAIEEKETHE
TN BRFEBEREAENAT :

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AR®FT

- 11,535
- 34,929
- 19,059

- 65,523

R2011F 12318 ' RETAIBESE
FRNBZERERERBLBLAAR
¥&Z 5T (20104F : AR¥37,316,0007T) ©

REMEREEASEARERSFE B
TEEkSEAMERNNES - HER
FHE_E+THEFHHE BTBERA
HE o

RAFE - # AR ¥ 5,846,000 7T (2010
F£: AR 7,531,0007T) 2 RIERATE
REDHEMENHASHAL -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (/5

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BHE AN 5
In addition to those related party transactions and balances BR A BF IS 3R R E A i 5 4 BE M 2 S R
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the AETRGRERIN REFEBEA T
following transactions and balances with related parties during the REANR G REHIT ¢
year:
(a) Key management personnel compensation (a) EEEEASHM
The key management personnel of the Group comprises all AEENTZEBABBEMEE
directors, details of their emoluments were disclosed in note = FENTIFBRERIEER
13 to the financial statements. FHIEE13.
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EERFE A TW4AEER
2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMTT ARBTIT
Included in trade and other receivables  FF AEUREES &Eﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬂlm
Prepayments of construction materials [ — % BEAT(HEE
to a related party, which is EB R RIES )
beneficially owned and controlled ?EHEJEMME f
by Mr. ZENG Yunshu - 1,136
Included in trade and other T AFETEREN » E e
payables, and accruals N RIERER
Amount due to a related party, EN—ZEEAL (HEEE
which is beneficially owned and S ER A RIEH) K18
controlled by Mr. ZENG Yunshu 200 200

Included in bank and other borrowings FABITREMBEE
Amount due to shareholder, which is BN —2EZRE (HREREE

beneficially owned and controlled SEERET AL -

by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa and iﬂﬁ%$%%*2@ﬂﬁ% 2

Mr. Chang Ting Kong, the spouse of B A R 5

Mr. Yeung So Miu, an executive

Director 77,357 =
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

UAE

41. FEHE A A

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which TRESINEEXLEREHER -

principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the Group.

kB BB TE’J#\* §$* ’

To give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion of the REEMHERRFE @(ﬁ?ﬁ?\i

directors, result in particulars of excessive length. The class of
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Name of
subsidiaries

WEAREH

Access
Achievement
Limited

Hong Long
Property
Group
Company
Limited

BEMESE
BRAR

Shenzhen
Hong Long
Commercial
Management
Company
Limited

RYITREE %
ERBRAR

Shenzhen Zirui
Real Estate
Development
Limited*

RIEIRE S E
HEERAR

(TRIZ )

Place of
incorporation Place of
or registration operation

MBI BRI EEHE

BVI The PRC
ERENES i
The PRC The PRC
B i
The PRC The PRC
B i
The PRC The PRC
B i

BRITEK e ﬁfjaﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬁl\ RSN
T38RI & A o

Percentage
ownership
interest/
Issued voting power/
and paid profit sharing Principal Legal
up capital EhESE 1’?@%&/ activities form
BETREHEAR RER/BHNED TEEH EERE
Direct Indlrect
B e
% %
US$10,000 100 - Investment Private
10,000 7T holding limited
REER liabilities
company
A
BRAR
RMB299,000,000 - 100 Property Wholly
AFE#299,000,000 7T development  foreign
and property owned
investment enterprises
MERE SEEE
EOFERE %
RMB10,680,000 - 100 Property Limited
AE¥10,680,0007T leasing and liabilities
sub-leasing company
WERE BRAR
R
RMB21,000,000 - 100 Property Limited
AE¥21,000,0007T development liabilities
MR company
BRAR

Sun Century Group Limited AR5t 5EEER A 7
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

C UARBTTITR)

41. T )E A A (4])

Place of Issued
Name of incorporation Place of and paid
subsidiaries or registration operation up capital

HE A =ER SR B EEHE BERTRESER

Shenyang Hong The PRC The PRC RMB2,000,000
Long Real B B AR 2,000,0007C
Estates
Company
Limited

RITBEE R
BRAT

Hong Long The PRC The PRC RMB74,000,000

Winfnder H F 74,000,000787T
(Shenyang)
Real Estates
Company
Limited

WEERE (B)
EXARAA

Chaohu Boshing The PRC The PRC US$2,790,000
Tourism H F 2,790,800 T
Development
Company
Limited

RN R i
HEBRAR

u The Group acquired 90% of the equity interest of Shenzheng Zirui
Real Estate Development Limited (“SZ Zirui”) in 2008. According
to the share transfer agreement entered, the vendor shall transfer
the remaining 10% equity interest to the Group upon the delivery
of certain properties to the vendor upon completion of construction.
However, the vendor shall not share any profits in SZ Zirui and shall not
participate in the financial and operating policies of SZ Zirui. Hence, the
Group regards SZ Zirui as a wholly-owned subsidiary.

134 Sun Century Group Limited &5 t42 =B HR A 8
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Percentage
ownership
interest/
voting power/
profit sharing Principal
Bl RER activities
RER/mAEAL TEEK
Direct Indirect

=k I

% %

100 Property
development

NER%

100 Property
development

MER%

100 Property
development

NER%

Legal
form

EERAR

Limited
liabilities
company

BRAH

Wholly
foreign
owned
enterprises

SEEE
%

Wholly
foreign
owned
enterprises

SEEE
%

& 7N = B 72 2008 F U B R I K 3m #9 90 %
AR - BBERNEREGZE - EHEREA
BEHRXNETRIMERRANEEEE
BT 10% BRI © AT - BA B HER
LN EREF - B RE2EFFTE
YR 00 B 75 I BB BUR - #lt - A&
B RIKImRAZENBAR
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Er=5F

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

UAE

42, Wi HARRIA

(a)

(b)

On 4 January 2012, the Company raised approximately
HK$61,534,000 (equivalent to RMB49,227,000) before
expenses for working capital of the Group and for settlement
of outstanding projects construction cost, by way of issuing
615,335,692 shares of HK$0.01 each at the subscription
price of HK$0.10 per share on the basis of one offer share for
every two shares held on 8 December 2011, the record date
of the open offer. Details of the open offer are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 9 December 2011.

On 6 January 2012, Hong Long Property Group Limited
("Hong Long Property”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party for the disposal of its wholly-owned
subsidiary Shenyang Hong Long Real Estates Company
Limited which is principally engaged in the property
development for the consideration of RMB82,000,000.

In January 2012, the Company issued convertible notes in
the principal amount of HK$30 million to an independent
third party to raise general working capital for the Group. On
20 February 2012, 244,299,674 shares of HK$0.01 each were
issued by the Company on the conversion price of HK$0.1228
per share as the note holder exercised the conversion rights
attached to the convertible notes.

(a)

R2012F1 A48 A2 a R
KRHASAHALAEEZEEESSE
#761,534,000 % 7T (FHE R AR
49,227,00070) R BAREEZEE
R AN RN 8k B EI2011
F12 A 8 BE R A MR Al &
—RBEERHZEE  UTRES
B2 0.108Tc 2 REEEBARE
&7 277615,335,692 L F M@
B0.01 B2k - BREAARHES
ZHBEHN B A2011E12H9H
ZARRNRERER o

M20129F1 868 &KX ARQ 7 HMHE
BE2EMBARBEEEBER
RE(BEME ) B-—ZBIE
ZARI—EHBBEARBARE
82,000,000 HEEZEME A A
BISEREEEFR AR o BB BE
BEEXERAREENEMERE -

M2012461 A - ARAEM—BEL
E=F17A££%830,000,0007%
TCH AT AR 4R - A AR E K
—REEES - M201242 A20
H BREBRFBATETBRRE
WRFTHT SRR RE R - #1244,299,674
REREEO0.01 B ITRMDAAAR
RER0.1228 8 T EIR(EEEIT ©
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42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (CONT’D)

. )/‘/\ <

42. Wil AR FIH (4)

(d)

On about 5 March 2012, Shenzhen Branch of China
Construction Bank (the “Bank”) has filed a writ of
civil proceedings (the “Writ") with Guangdong Higher
People’s Court against Shenzhen Hong Long Commercial
Management Company Limited (“Hong Long Commercial
Management”), Hong Long Property, both indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company and a former Director
(the “Former Director”) of the Company (the “Action”).
The Action is relating to the loan contract dated 27 February
2009 and entered into between Hong Long Commercial
Management and the Bank for a loan of RMB600 million
(the “Loan") and the charge contract entered into between
Hong Long Property and the Bank in 2009 pursuant to which
Hong Long Property created a charge over five commercial
units in Bao An District, Shenzhen with total GFA of about
64,447.13m? (the “Charged Properties”) in favour of the Bank
as security for the Loan. Pursuant to the Writ, the following
orders are being sought by the Bank:

(i) Hong Long Commercial Management shall repay the
outstanding principal of the Loan of RMB440.6 million
and the outstanding interest accrued thereon up to the
date of the full repayment of the outstanding principal
of the Loan;

(ii) the Bank shall have the right to dispose of the Charged
Properties and priority to be compensated by the
proceeds from such disposal;

(i) Hong Long Property and the Former Director shall
be jointly liable for the liabilities of Hong Long
Management as guarantors; and

(ivi  Hong Long Commercial Management, Hong Long
Property and the Former Director shall bear the costs of
the proceedings and other costs incurred by the Bank.

43. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(d)

R#2012463 A5 0 - REERE
TRYIDT([ERT)) MERE =R
ARZERBERES (TFFRLD F
MREEEERER AR ([BER
X¥EE]) - BEME(RMEHALR
ARZHEEE2ERBAR) RARA
Al—RAAES((REES 2
REFBLM([2AK]) - FAAA
BRABERXERERITRARE
600,000,000 2 B (B R
20092 27 BRI 2 ERAE L&
8 B2 i 2= BRR 1T M 2009 FR] M 2
EHEL - RIBEMEL - BEM
ERRITEEMANRIITERED
RIEEEES H464,447.13m2 2

FEmEEN ([EEWED ERE
RZEHE - RESHK - RITES

SOERRELAT ¢
(i) EEBEEEEEEXR

ZABEBERE ARE
440,600,0007T & A E 3 H

HAZEHEEERZAE
EASBHARFZ AT

B

(i) |OTAEREERYELE
BERARESZEEMSR
B{ERE

(i) BEMENMAEESIERE
RAHBEBEEENES
BHRRAEE &

(ivi BEEREE  BEMER
B (EE B AR FAREFHIK
AR RIRITEE M HABRL T o

43. HEM B HGE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 30 March 2012.
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